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UNITED STATES  

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION  
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549  

   
FORM 10-K/A  

( Amendment #1)    
   

(Mark One)  
   

�  ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934.  
   

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014  
   

�  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934.  
   

For the transition period from _________ to __________  
    

Commission File Number 0-54744  
    

WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC.  
(Name of Registrant in its Charter)  

   

   
A602-C, No. 2 Office, Longgang Tianan Digital Innovation Park,  

441 Huangge Road, Longcheng Street, Longgang District, Shenzhen,  
Guangdong Province, P.R. China 518057  
(Address of Principal Executive Offices)  

   
Issuer's Telephone Number: 852-2815-0191  

   
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act: NONE  

   
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act:  

   
COMMON STOCK, $0.001 PAR VALUE  

(Title of Class)  
   

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 406 of the Securities Act. Yes �   No �  
   
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.  Yes �   No �    
   
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Sections 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject 
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes �    No �  
   
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data 
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or 
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files.) Yes �    No �  
   
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§ 229.405) is not contained herein, and will not 
be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this 
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. �  
   
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting 
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange 
Act. (Check One)  
   
Large accelerated filer �     Accelerated filer �     Non-accelerated filer �      Smaller reporting company  �  
   
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  Yes �   No �  
   
As of June 30, 2014, the last day of the registrant’s most recent fiscal second quarter, the aggregate market value of the common stock held by 
non-affiliates was $126,570,951 based upon the closing sale price on June 30, 2014 of $3.60 per share.  
   

  

Nevada   26-0775642 
(State of Other Jurisdiction of  
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As of March 30, 2015, there were 38,380,130 shares of common stock outstanding.  
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Amendment No. 1  
   
This amendment is being filed to include the Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, which was inadvertently omitted 
from the initial filing.  
   
No other changes have been made to the Report, nor has it been updated. For more current information, please refer to the Issuer's more recent 
filings on EDGAR.  
   

  

  



   
PART I  

   
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS: NO ASSURANCES INTENDED  

   
In addition to historical information, this Annual Report contains forward-looking statements, which are generally identifiable by use of the 
words “believes,” “expects,” “intends,” “anticipates,” “plans to,” “estimates,” “projects,” or similar expressions. These forward-looking 
statements represent Management’s belief as to the future of Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. Whether those beliefs become reality will 
depend on many factors that are not under Management’s control. Many risks and uncertainties exist that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those reflected in these forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, 
those discussed in Section 1A of this Report, entitled “Risk Factors.” Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements. We undertake no obligation to revise or publicly release the results of any revision to these forward-looking statements.  
   

   
We conduct our operations through our consolidated affiliate Shenzhen Wonhe Technology Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Shenzhen 
Wonhe”).  Shenzhen Wonhe, founded in November 2010, is a high tech company specializing in research and development, outsourced-
manufacturing and marketing of high-end business and personal information technology products.  Shenzhen Wonhe is located in Shenzhen, 
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).   
   
Our Corporate History and Background    
   
Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the State of Nevada on August 13, 2007 under the name “Baby Fox 
International, Inc.”  Until June 30, 2011, the Company was a specialty retailer, developer, and designer of fashionable, value-priced women’s 
apparel and accessories. On June 30, 2011, the Company entered into and closed a Reorganization Agreement under which it disposed of its 
prior business operations and became a shell company.    
   
On March 20, 2012, Super-Stable Group Holdings Limited (“Super-Stable”) purchased 80% of the Company’s outstanding shares from the 
control group. Super-Stable paid the Sellers $250,000, which it had borrowed from Shenzhen Wonhe.   Pursuant to the terms of the purchase 
agreement, Wei Wang was named sole Director of the Company and Nanfang Tong was named President, Secretary and Treasurer of the 
Company.  
   
On April 20, 2012, the Company amended its articles of incorporation to change its name to “Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc.” and to effect 
a 10-for-1 forward stock split of its outstanding shares of common stock. The forward split increased the number of issued and outstanding 
shares of the Company’s common stock from 2,390,013 shares outstanding prior to the split to 23,900,130 shares outstanding after the split. In 
connection with the name change, the Company’s trading symbol changed from “BBFX” to “WHHT.”  
   
On June 27, 2012, we completed a reverse acquisition through a share exchange with World Win International Holding Ltd (BVI), a corporation 
organized in the British Virgin Islands (“World Win”). We acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of World Win and Super-
Stable transferring to the shareholders of World Win 19,128,130 shares of our common stock, which constituted 80.0% of our issued and 
outstanding capital stock. As a result of the reverse acquisition, World Win became our wholly-owned subsidiary and the former shareholders of 
World Win became our controlling stockholders. The share exchange was treated for accounting purposes as a reverse acquisition, with World 
Win as the acquirer and the Company as the acquired party. Unless the context suggests otherwise, when we refer in this report to business and 
financial information for periods prior to the consummation of the reverse acquisition, we are referring to the business and financial information 
of World Win and its consolidated subsidiaries.  
   

  

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 
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World Win was established in the British Virgin Islands on April 5, 2012, at which time it acquired ownership of Kuayu International Holdings 
Group Ltd. (Hong Kong), an entity established in Hong Kong on January 11, 2012 to serve as an intermediate holding company. On April 6, 
2012, the local government of the PRC issued a certificate of approval regarding the acquisition by Kuayu of Shengshihe Management 
Consulting (Shanzhen) Co., Ltd., an entity established in the PRC on April 17, 2012 (“Shengshihe Consulting”).   
   
The business of Shengshihe Consulting is to provide management services to Shenzhen Wonhe. The services are provided pursuant to a set of 
four agreements among Shengshihe Consulting, Shenzhen Wonhe and the shareholders of Shenzhen Wonhe: Youliang Wang, Qing Tong, 
Jingwu Li and Nanfang Tong. The four agreements assign to Shengshihe Consulting over 95% of the benefit arising from the operations of 
Shenzhen Wonhe as well as control of the corporate activities of that entity. As a result, for accounting purposes, Shenzhen Wonhe is considered 
a variable interest entity with respect to Shengshihe Consulting, and the balance sheet and financial results of Shenzhen Wonhe are consolidated 
with those of the Company in our financial statements. Accordingly, the four agreements that govern the relationship are known as variable 
interest agreements (the “VIE Agreements”). A summary of the terms of the four agreements is set forth below in Item 7, “Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”  
   
The use of VIE agreements is a common structure used to acquire control of PRC corporations, particularly in certain industries in which foreign 
investment is restricted or forbidden by the PRC government. However, the VIE Agreements with our Chinese affiliate and its shareholders, 
which relate to critical aspects of our operations, may not be as effective in providing operational control as direct ownership. In addition, these 
arrangements may be difficult and costly to enforce under PRC law. See “Risk Factors - Risks Relating to the VIE Agreements.”  
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As a result of the share exchange in June 2012, our current organizational structure is as follows:  

     
   
Business Overview  

   
Shenzhen Wonhe is a high-tech enterprise which specializes in research and development and the marketing of high-end business and 
personal IT products that provide third party application services. Until recently, all of our revenues were derived from sales of our Home Media 
Center 660 (“HMC660”) in Guangdong Province. However, during the last quarter of 2013, the Company discontinued the production of 
HMC660 and focused on development of a second generation home media center, the "HMC720", which we developed in order to meet 
government purchasing standards in additional provinces, and thus allow the expansion of our market. In October 2014, we introduced the 
HMC720 and began to rebuild our sales volume.  
   
HMC720 is a data storage, management and control center for household equipment, and a central processing center which uses remote wireless 
technology to allow a user to control various devices while at home or remotely when away from home. HMC720 provides a software platform 
that has the functional characteristics of both a family security device and a direct TV receiver, with the ability to access TV and video on 
demand, as well as to function as a game console and storage facility for family and business information. HMC720 can be used to watch ground 
satellite programs, read CD-ROMs and video files, support Wifi functions, share broadband access, support 3G module functions, and can be 
adapted to include other applications.  
   
Based on the HMC660, the upgrade of our HMC720 included adoption of the fourth-generation Intel program and improvement of the memory 
to 4G. The HMC720 uses a 2.5 inch 1T hard disk as well as dual band processing system to ensure the successful reception of signals, and to 
guarantee a clear image. In addition to supporting MPEG-1/2/4, H.264, H.263, WMV7/8/9, Divx and other formats, HMC720 adds the rapid 
hardware function and lossless play function of APEG. HMC720 products are sensitive in speed regulation and key press, along with excellent 
thermal dissipation function. The noise is lower than 20 decibels. Thus, users can have interactive digital recreation, education and commercial 
activities at the same time that they watch digital television programs.  
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We believe our HMC720 has the following favorable traits and advantages compared to other similar products currently available in the 
marketplace:  
   

   

   

   
Our major product under development is a computer set-top-box (“PC-STB”), which combines the system architecture of a multimedia computer 
with that of a digital set-top box, and features wireless remote control, fully integrating a family’s multimedia application requirements into a 
single device. In addition, we have seven other hardware products that are  in various stages of  research and development, including a domestic 
mini-terminal server, a minicomputer, an All-In-One PC, an ARM panel personal computer and an Android smartphone, We are also developing 
a Wonhe applications platform and a metropolis business information operating website.  
   
Our Industry    
   
In the description below we rely on certain information and statistics regarding our industry and the economy in China that we derived from the 
2012 Statistical Report of Electronic Information Industry published by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the People’s 
Republic of China.  We have no reason to believe that the information and statistics we cite are not accurate.  
   
In recent years the electronic information products industry has achieved growth rates above that of the overall Chinese economy. In 2012, the 
PRC electronic information products industry achieved 11 trillion RMB in sales revenue and the larger companies achieved sales revenue of 8.5 
trillion RMB with year-over-year earnings growth of 13.0%. With the anticipated continuation of the growth of the PRC national economy and 
the transformation of the Chinese society to a more western style information economy, market demand for electronic information products is 
expected to continue to experience rates of growth in excess of the economy generally.  
   

  

1. Excellent performance: good audio and video decoding capability equipped with high-performance CPU and AV chips, supporting 
1080P high definition play and 7.1 sound track HIFI effect. 

2. Ultralow power: the incorporation of the INTEL ATOM ultralow power master chip series along with advanced inner thermal design 
reduces power consumption to only one-tenth of a typical desktop computer. In addition, the fine heat dissipation and structural design 
ensure the surface temperature remains below 35� even while working for a long time. Avoidance of extreme temperatures contributes 
to the chip’s performance and minimizes disruptions. 

3. Complete functions: our HMC 660 combines a PC set top box (“STB”), DVD, multimedia computer, security monitor HZJTHY and 
visual telephone into one comprehensive digital home furnishing solution with a fashionable appearance and compact size. 

4. Abundant applications: the application software combines telecommunication, radio and television and the internet, provides abundant 
video content themed by television, movies and information programs, households themed by family security, smart home, motion 
sports and videophone; and value-added services themed by telemedicine, online instruction, auto repair and E-shopping. 
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Nowadays, the electronic information industry is viewed by many countries as a leading and strategic industry. The rapid promotion of 
informatization around the globe, the development of transnational investment and transnational transmission of information, have enhanced the 
value of the electronic information industry. As the Chinese electronic information industry has grown, international competition has continued 
to increase. Despite the growth in the Chinese electronic information industry, some bottle-neck issues have developed, such as the limitations of 
technology, capital, availability of personnel, as well as increasing costs and a decrease in foreign-funded investment in recent years as a result 
of the macro-environment changes in China and abroad. Despite these problems, we believe the electronics information industry will continue to 
grow, based on the following trends:  
   

   
Since 2000, the Chinese domestic electronic information industry has consistently experienced rapid growth and has always been a 
leading industry in the whole national economy.  By the end of 2010 the total number of patent applications from the PRC nationwide 
information technology field was over 1.1 million, more than 10% above the number of patents filed by the industry in 2009. Several 
companies in this field have received Chinese National Prizes for Progress in Science and Technology, and achieved new breakthroughs 
in servers, carriage communication installation and software, demonstrating a good industry development trend.  

   
Since 2000, the rate of innovation in the electronic information industry has increased. R&D and industrialization of CPU, Chinese 
Linux, the third generation mobile communications, trunking communications and digital TV, have proven successful in creating 
technology and products with proprietary intellectual property rights and closing the gap with the advanced world standard. The 
technology of TD-SCDMA (Time Division-Synchronization Code Division Multiple Access) has also made significant progress. 
Setting its own independent criteria and establishing industry wide standards has made the PRC industry increasingly competitive, 
especially those domestic PRC companies which are market leaders.  

   

   
The potentially huge domestic PRC electronic information products market, abundant low-priced manpower and continuously 
improving investment environment are key factors attracting foreign companies and investors to set up business bases in China. Foreign 
capital accelerated the development of the PRC electronic information industry, particularly in the Pearl River Delta, Yangtze River 
Delta and Bohai Rim. These areas have a good industry foundation, strong ability to provide the auxiliary items necessary for growth, 
and the strong service consciousness from government, to attract foreign investment to increase investments, and promote the 
development of local industries into a positive cycle.  
   

The specific niche in the electronic information products market occupied by Shenzhen Wonhe should benefit from this confluence of positive 
trends. More than 10 year ago, tri-networks integration (film and cable TV, video communication, web browser) was proposed by the 
government. This goal has been listed as a priority in each of the “ninth,” ”tenth” and “eleventh” five-year plans. In the tenth five-year plan, the 
government emphasized that industry should promote the integration of the telecommunication and broadcast networks with the capabilities of 
the computer. The eleventh five-year plan reiterated this goal and stated that in order to impel tri-network integration, industry should integrate 
infrastructure resources in the development of technology. At the same time, all of the relevant departments in the country are actively 
implementing the tri-networks integration project.  
   

  

1. Electronic Information Industry has a solid history of growth. 

2. Technology innovation capabilities are improving. 

3. Regional industrial clusters are emerging . 
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Competition  
   
Our products will compete with other manufacturers and providers of electronic furniture and digital/multimedia home entertainment systems, 
such as Shenzhen Huawei Technology Co., Ltd, Datang Tele-Communication Technology Co., Ltd., Haier Group, TCL Group Co., and Lenovo 
Group Co., Ltd. We compete on the basis of style, price, quality, comfort and brand name prestige and recognition, among other considerations.  
   
Our home media center (“HMC”) entertainment system competes with numerous well-known domestic brands such as Huawei, Haier, TCL and 
Lenovo, as well as well-known foreign brands such as Samsung and Apple iPad. Due to the lower costs and labor expenses in Asia Pacific 
regions, many international HMC manufacturers are establishing plants in Asia. This allows large manufacturers to compete with local 
manufacturers in pricing. Many of our competitors are larger in scale, have been in existence for a longer period of time, have achieved greater 
recognition for their brand names, have captured greater market shares and/or have substantially greater financial, distribution, marketing and 
other resources than we do.  
   
We introduced our HMC660 in December 2011 and then terminated sales at the end of 2013. Due to the short period of time this product was 
offered, we were not able to establish a significant market share and strong market competitive strength. The lack of sales from the last quarter of 
2013 until the fourth quarter of 2014 further affected our market share. There can be no guarantee that we can compete successfully now or in 
the future, or that competitive pressures will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.  
   
Our Growth Strategy    
   
For the foreseeable future we intend to continue to emphasize the development of multimedia devices capable of integrating telecommunication, 
broadcast and computer (internet) networks.  In addition, we intend to focus on the development of panel personal computers (i.e. portable 
pads,“PPC’s”) and smartphones.  The telecommunications market in China is undergoing rapid development and there is a growing demand for 
portable media devices to be integrated into GSM and TD-SCDMA networks.  If we are successful in developing such products, in addition to 
offering them to electronic products distributors, we will seek to enter into joint marketing or other cooperative agreements with mobile telecom 
carriers in China.  
   
Business Partnerships  

   
The company intends to utilize its social resources in an effort to develop business partnerships with China’s largest telecom operators. Among 
the programs that our strategic development staff will pursue are:  
   

   

   

   
Although we intend to make efforts to establish these business relationships, there is no guarantee that we will succeed.  
   

  

● Research into the preferences of China Mobile with regard to PPC and smart phone design, followed by intensive development efforts 
to resolve the technological problems that currently prevent China Mobile from satisfying those preferences. 

● Cooperation with the government-enterprise customer departments of China Mobile, which is the largest mobile telecom carrier in 
China based on the GSM and TD-SCDMA network. 

● Efforts to establish business partnership with China United Network Communications Group Co, Ltd., the largest telecom operator in 
China, and China Telecommunications Corporation, a large state-owned telecommunication company, to combine our sales of smart 
phone products with telecommunication services provided by those operators. 
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Since 2010, agencies of the Chinese government have expressed a national policy favoring tri-network integration (i.e. film and cable TV, video 
communication, web browser) throughout China in order to improve communications content, increase network security, and promote the 
Chinese telecommunications industry. Participants in the telecommunications industry have also stressed the need for further advances in this 
area. For this reason, we intend to focus our development efforts on products that will help to achieve this goal. To date our development efforts 
have been carried out by our in-house research and development staff. If, in the future, we require special expertise in order to provide customers 
with special tri-network applications, we will seek a cooperative arrangement with an application service provider capable of providing the 
necessary technical expertise.  
   
Our Marketing Strategy  
   
Sales of the HMC660 were limited to Guangdong Province. Recently we introduced our second generation product, the HMC720, which meet 
the purchasing standards of the local State Administration of Radio Film and Television in other provinces. Our marketing strategy will entail 
the establishment of a national network of dedicated sales agencies and distributors. As we introduce products, Shenzhen Wonhe will first sell 
the product to local sales agencies and distributors to introduce the products to the market. As demand grows, we will transition to exclusive 
distribution and sales channels. Support for the marketing effort will involve a five prong program:  
   

   

   

   
Production  
   
Shenzhen Wonhe does not engage in manufacturing, but provides technology and purchase orders to qualified manufacturers, which 
manufacture to our order. Our manufacturers are independent third parties with no relationship to Shenzhen Wonhe or its owners.  

   
During 2013 Shenzhen Wonhe outsourced the manufacture of its products to two producers: Shenzhen Tehuilong Electronic R&D Center 
produced the majority of our units, but was supplemented by Weiyida Electronic Product (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. For our newly developed product, 
the HMC720, we haveadopted the same production mode, but have engaged only one manufacturer, Shenzhen Tehuilong Electronic R&D 
Center, to perform the manufacturing.  
   
Relying on one manufacturer is a risk to our business. However, in determining to outsource all of our initial manufacturing to Shenzhen 
Tehuilong, we considered the following factors:  

   

   

  

  1.   Design a “Wonhe Vision Identity” ;   
      
  2.  Build “Wonhe”  brand image by unifying the appearance of all regional agents as well as the website of Wonhe; 

  3.   Secure product reviews on influential IT websites, such as PConline, 3G sina, to enhance the brand image and awareness of Wonhe;  
      
  4.   Engage film stars and celebrities to be image spokespersons to promote Wonhe branded products; 

  5.   Seek to place articles about Shenzhen Wonhe and its products in newspapers and elite fashion magazines (e.g. Modern Weekly, 
Fashion; Popular Science, etc.) in major cities.  

● That manufacturer’s production capacity and manufacturing strength are sufficient to satisfy our current annual sales plan. 
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Intellectual Property  
   
Research and Development  
   
Shenzhen Wonhe possesses a core technology team, most of whom have been engaged in the IT industry for more than 10 years. The members 
of our technology team specialize in development of hardware, system drivers, industrial design, application software systems and backstage 
data service.  
   
Producers of information technology products face strong pressure to respond quickly to industry demands with new designs and product 
innovations that support rapidly changing technical demand and regulatory requirements. Shenzhen Wonhe spent approximately $92,956, 
$156,000 and $574,000 on its research and development efforts for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.    
   
Shenzhen Wonhe has produced prototypes of domestic media centers, set top boxes, minicomputers, X86 panel personal computers and ARM 
panel personal computers, each of which is ready for the production development stage. The initial development of our All-in-One computers 
and domestic smart servers has been completed and these products have entered into the engineering test stage. However, before we initiate 
marketing of any of these products, we will have to assess the market demand for the product. We will also have to obtain government approval. 
The process of applying for and securing government approval of a product can be lengthy; so we cannot predict when we will introduce any 
new product to the market.  
   
We have developed client-side application software equipped with the characteristics of mellow human-computer interface, humanized menu 
design and handy function switchover. We are simultaneously proceeding with cross-platform transplanting to adapt to Windows, Linux and 
Android OS; software such as resources search engine, video filtering and processing technology, resource allocation and management, 
disposition and scheme of backstage application and data server are all completed by the Shenzhen Wonhe Application Center.  

   
Protection of IP  
   
We protect our intellectual property primarily by maintaining strict control over the use of production processes.  All our employees, including 
key employees and engineers, have signed our standard form of labor contracts, pursuant to which they are obligated to hold in confidence any 
of our trade secrets, know-how or other confidential information and not to compete with us.  In addition, for each project, only the personnel 
associated with the project have access to the related intellectual property.  Access to proprietary data is limited to authorized personnel to 
prevent unintended disclosure or otherwise using our intellectual property without proper authorization.  We will continue to take steps to protect 
our intellectual property.  

   
In April 2011, the company submitted two patent applications to the appropriate Chinese government agency (“SIPO”): tri-networks integration 
equipment (patent number: ZL 2011 2 0095525.X) and TV system and remote control (patent number: ZL 2011 2 0130608.8). Each of these 
officially received utility model patent certifications from the SIPO on September 21, 2011 and October 19, 2011, respectively.   
   

  

● Every month we ordered a sufficient quantity of products to meet the next month’s demand, which protected us from the risk of non-
delivery. 

      
● We have been able to maintain close relations with other manufacturers that possess good production technology, and so could secure a 

replacement for our contracted manufacturer if necessary. 
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Regulation  

   
Because our operating affiliate, Shenzhen Wonhe, is located in the PRC, our business is regulated by the national and local laws of the PRC. We 
believe our conduct of business complies with existing PRC laws, rules and regulations.  
   
General Regulation of Businesses  
   
We believe we are in material compliance with all applicable labor and safety laws and regulations in the PRC, including the PRC Labor 
Contract Law, the PRC Production Safety Law, the PRC Regulation for Insurance for Labor Injury, the PRC Unemployment Insurance Law, the 
PRC Provisional Insurance Measures for Maternity of Employees, PRC Interim Provisions on Registration of Social Insurance, PRC Interim 
Regulation on the Collection and Payment of Social Insurance Premiums and other related regulations, rules and provisions issued by the 
relevant governmental authorities from time to time.  

   
According to the PRC Labor Contract Law, we are required to enter into labor contracts with our employees. We are required to pay no less than 
local minimum wages to our employees. We are also required to provide employees with labor safety and sanitation conditions meeting PRC 
government laws and regulations and carry out regular health examinations of our employees engaged in hazardous occupations.  

   
Foreign Currency Exchange  

   
The principal regulation governing foreign currency exchange in China is the Foreign Currency Administration Rules (1996), as amended 
(2008). Under these Rules, RMB is freely convertible for current account items, such as trade and service-related foreign exchange transactions, 
but not for capital account items, such as direct investment, loan or investment in securities outside China unless the prior approval of, and/or 
registration with, the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of the People’s Republic of China, or SAFE, or its local counterparts (as the case 
may be) is obtained.  
   
Pursuant to the Foreign Currency Administration Rules, foreign invested enterprises, or FIEs, in China may purchase foreign currency without 
the approval of SAFE for trade and service-related foreign exchange transactions by providing commercial documents evidencing these 
transactions. They may also retain foreign exchange (subject to a cap approved by SAFE) to satisfy foreign exchange liabilities or to pay 
dividends. In addition, if a foreign company acquires a subsidiary in China, the acquired company will also become an FIE. However, the 
relevant PRC government authorities may limit or eliminate the ability of FIEs to purchase and retain foreign currencies in the future. In 
addition, foreign exchange transactions for direct investment, loan and investment in securities outside China are still subject to limitations and 
require approvals from, and/or registration with, SAFE.  
   
Regulation of Income Taxes  

   
On March 16, 2007, the National People’s Congress of China passed the Enterprise Income Tax Law, or the EIT Law, and its implementing 
rules, both of which became effective on January 1, 2008. The EIT Law and its implementing rules impose a unified EIT rate of 25.0% on all 
domestic-invested enterprises and FIEs, unless they qualify under certain limited exceptions.  
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Under the EIT Law, companies designated as High- and New-Technology Enterprises may enjoy a reduced national EIT rate of 15%. The 
Administrative Measures for Assessment of High-New Tech Enterprises and Catalogue of High/New Tech Domains Strongly Supported by the 
State (2008), jointly issued by the Ministry of Science and Technology and the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of Taxation set 
forth general guidelines regarding criteria as well as application procedures for qualification as a High- and New-Tech Enterprise under the EIT 
Law.   
   
In addition to the changes to the current tax structure, under the EIT Law, an enterprise established outside of China with “de facto management 
bodies” within China is considered a resident enterprise and will normally be subject to an EIT of 25% on its global income. The implementing 
rules define the term “de facto management bodies” as “an establishment that exercises, in substance, overall management and control over the 
production, business, personnel, accounting, etc., of a Chinese enterprise.” If, therefore, the PRC tax authorities determine that we should be 
classified as a resident enterprise, then our organization’s global income will be subject to PRC income tax of 25%.   
   
Dividend Distribution  
   
Under applicable PRC regulations, FIEs in China may pay dividends only out of their accumulated profits, if any, determined in accordance with 
PRC accounting standards and regulations. In addition, a FIE in China is required to set aside at least 10% of its after-tax profit based on PRC 
accounting standards each year to its general reserves until the cumulative amount of such reserves reach 50% of its registered capital. These 
reserves are not distributable as cash dividends.  
   
The EIT Law and its implementing rules generally provide that a 10% withholding tax applies to China-sourced income derived by non-resident 
enterprises for PRC enterprise income tax purposes unless the jurisdiction of incorporation of such enterprises’ shareholder has a tax treaty with 
China that provides for a different withholding arrangement. Shengshihe Consulting is considered a FIE and is directly held by our subsidiary in 
Hong Kong, Kuayu. According to a 2006 tax treaty between the Mainland and Hong Kong, dividends payable by an FIE in China to the 
company in Hong Kong that directly holds at least 25% of the equity interests in the FIE will be subject to a no more than 5% withholding tax. 
We expect that such 5% withholding tax will apply to dividends paid to Kuayu by Shengshihe Consulting, but this treatment will depend on our 
status as a non-resident enterprise.  
   
PRC M&A Rule, Circular 75 and Circular 638  

      
On August 8, 2006, six Chinese government agencies, namely, the Ministry of Commerce, the State Administration for Industry and Commerce, 
the China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CRSC”), the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, the State Assets Supervision and 
Administration Commission, and the State Administration for Taxation jointly issued the Regulations on Mergers and Acquisitions of Domestic 
Enterprises by Foreign Investors, referred to as the “New M&A Rules,” which became effective on September 8, 2006. The New M&A Rules 
purport, among other things, to require offshore “special purpose vehicles,” that are (1) formed for the purpose of overseas listing of the equity 
interests of Chinese companies via acquisition and (2) are controlled directly or indirectly by Chinese companies and/or Chinese individuals, to 
obtain the approval of the CSRC prior to the listing and trading of their securities on overseas stock exchanges. Based on our understanding of 
current Chinese Laws and pursuant to a legal opinion issued by Jinlin Changchun Law Firm dated June 2012, (i) Shengshihe Consulting was 
incorporated by a foreign investor and therefore has no Chinese shareholders; (ii) the share exchange between World Win and the Company is 
between two offshore companies and is not deemed as a transaction to acquire equity or assets of a “Chinese domestic company” as defined 
under the New M&A Rules and (iii) no provision in the New M&A Rules clearly classifies the contractual arrangements between Shengshihe 
Consulting and Shenzhen Wonhe as a type of transaction falling within the New M&A Rules.  
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The SAFE issued a public notice in October 2005 (“Circular 75”) requiring Chinese residents to register with the local SAFE branch before 
establishing or controlling any company outside of China for the purpose of capital financing with assets or equities of Chinese companies, 
referred to in Circular 75 as special purpose vehicles, or SPVs. Further, Chinese residents are required to file amendments to their registrations 
with the local SAFE branch if their SPVs undergo a material event involving changes in capital, such as changes in share capital, mergers and 
acquisitions, share transfers or exchanges, spin-off transactions or long-term equity or debt investments.  
   
Pursuant to Circular 698, where a foreign investor transfers the equity interests of a Chinese resident enterprise indirectly by disposing of the 
equity interests of an overseas holding company, which we refer to as an “Indirect Transfer,” and such overseas holding company is located in a 
tax jurisdiction that: (i) has an effective tax rate less than 12.5% or (ii) does not tax foreign income of its residents, the foreign investor shall 
report such Indirect Transfer to the competent tax authority of the Chinese resident enterprise. The Chinese tax authority will examine the true 
nature of the Indirect Transfer, and if the tax authority considers that the foreign investor has adopted an abusive arrangement in order to avoid 
Chinese tax, it will disregard the existence of the overseas holding company and re-characterize the Indirect Transfer and as a result, gains 
derived from such Indirect Transfer may be subject to Chinese withholding tax at the rate of up to 10%. Circular 698 also provides that, where a 
non-Chinese resident enterprise transfers its equity interests in a Chinese resident enterprise to its related parties at a price lower than the fair 
market value, the competent tax authority has the power to make a reasonable adjustment to the taxable income of the transaction.  
   
Employees  

   
We have a total of 26 full-time employees and no part-time employees.  
   

   
Investing in our common stock involves risk. You should carefully consider the risks described below together with all of the other information 
contained in this Report, including the financial statements and the related notes, before deciding whether to purchase any shares of our common 
stock. If any of the following risks occurs, our business, financial condition or operating results could materially suffer. In that event, the trading 
price of our common stock could decline and you may lose all or part of your investment.  

   
RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS  

   
Our management has limited experience in managing and operating a public company. Any failure to comply with federal securities laws, 
rules or regulations could subject us to fines or regulatory actions, which may materially adversely affect our business, results of operations 
and financial condition.  

   
Prior to 2012, our current management had no experience managing and operating a public company and has relied in many instances on the 
professional experience and advice of third parties including our attorneys and accountants.  Few members of our middle and top management 
staff were educated and trained in the Western system, and we may have difficulty hiring new employees in the PRC with such training. As a 
result, we may experience difficulty in establishing management, legal and financial controls, collecting financial data and preparing financial 
statements, books of account and corporate records and instituting business practices that meet Western standards. Therefore, we may, in turn, 
experience difficulties in implementing and maintaining adequate internal controls as required under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002, as amended. This may result in significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in our internal controls, which could impact the reliability 
of our financial statements and prevent us from complying with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") rules and regulations 
and the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended. Failure to comply with any laws, rules, or regulations applicable to our 
business may result in fines or regulatory actions, which may materially adversely affect our business, results of operation, or financial condition 
and could result in delays in developing of an active and liquid trading market for our common stock. To the extent that the market place 
perceives that we do not have a strong financial staff and financial controls, the market for, and price of, our stock may be impaired.  
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The lack of expertise in U.S. GAAP among the staff of our finance department could result in errors in our filings.  
   
The books and records of Shenzhen Wonhe, our operating entity, are maintained in accordance with bookkeeping practices that are customary in 
China. The financial statements of Shenzhen Wonhe and Shengshihe Consulting are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in China. The staff of our finance department, which prepares those financial statements, has extensive experience with Chinese GAAP, 
but very limited experience with U.S. GAAP. Therefore, in order to file with the SEC consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance 
with U.S. GAAP, we have engaged an independent consultant who makes the adjustments to the financial statements of Shenzhen Wonhe and 
Shengshihe Consulting necessary to achieve compliance with U.S. GAAP, then performs the consolidation required to produce the consolidated 
financial statements of Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. Because that consultant, who is not present in our executive offices, is the only 
participant in the preparation of our financial statements possessing a familiarity with U.S. GAAP, there is a risk that the persons responsible for 
the initial classifications of the elements of our financial results will err in making those classifications, which will cause our reported financial 
statements to be erroneous. Any such errors, besides being misleading to investors, could result in subsequent restatements, which could have an 
adverse effect on the perception of the Company among investors.  
   
We encounter substantial competition in our business and any failure to compete effectively could adversely affect our results of operations.  
   
The electronics and information technology industry is highly competitive, and we may not be able to compete successfully against current or 
potential competitors. We compete with large PRC electronics companies, such as Shenzhen Huawei Technology Co., Ltd., Datang Telecom 
Technology Co., Ltd., as well as a large number of small firms. Many of our competitors have greater financial resources than we do. We 
anticipate that our competitors will continue to expand and seek to obtain additional market share with competitive price and performance 
characteristics. Aggressive expansion by our competitors or the entrance of new competitors into our markets could have a material adverse 
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.  
   
We require highly qualified personnel and, if we are unable to hire or retain qualified personnel, we may not be able to grow effectively.  
   
Our future success also depends upon our ability to attract and retain highly qualified personnel. Expansion of our business and the proposed 
growth of our business will require additional managers and employees with industry experience, and our success will be highly dependent on 
our ability to attract and retain skilled management personnel and other employees. We may not be able to attract or retain highly qualified 
personnel. Competition for skilled information technology personnel is significant. This competition may make it more difficult and expensive to 
attract, hire and retain qualified managers and employees.  
   

  

12 



   
The loss of the services of our key employees, particularly the services rendered by Qing Tong, our chairman, Nanfang Tong, our chief 
executive officer, or Chahua Yuan, our chief financial officer, could harm our business.  
   
Our success depends to a significant degree on the services rendered to us by our key employees. If we fail to attract, train and retain sufficient 
numbers of these qualified people, our prospects, business, financial condition and results of operations will be materially and adversely affected. 
In particular, we are heavily dependent on the continued services of Qing Tong, our chairman, Nanfang Tong, our chief executive officer and 
Chahua Yuan, our chief financial officer. We currently do not have key employee insurance for our officers and directors. The loss of any these 
key employees, including members of our senior management team, and our inability to attract highly skilled personnel with sufficient 
experience in our industry could harm our business.  
   
We rely on one third-party manufacturer to manufacture our products.  
   
We currently depend on one contracted manufacturer to manufacture the products that we sell. If any significant problems occur at the 
production facility of our third-party manufacturer, our ability to deliver our products could be adversely affected.  If our contract manufacturer 
is unable to maintain adequate manufacturing and shipping capacity, it may be unable to provide us with timely delivery of products of 
acceptable quality. Our inability to meet our customers’ demand for our products could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial 
condition and results of operations.  In addition, if the prices charged by our contractor increase for reasons such as increases in labor costs or 
currency fluctuations, our cost of manufacturing would increase, adversely affecting our results of operations. We require our contract 
manufacturer to meet our standards in terms of product quality and other matters. Any failure by our contract manufacturer to meet these 
standards, to adhere to labor or other laws or to diverge from our mandated practices, and the potential negative publicity relating to any of these 
events, could harm our business and reputation.  
   
We also depend on third parties to transport and deliver our products. Due to the fact that we do not have any independent transportation or 
delivery capabilities of our own, if these third parties are unable to transport or deliver our products for any reason, or if they increase the price 
of their services, including as a result of increases in the cost of fuel, our operations and financial performance may be adversely affected.  

   
We will incur significant costs to ensure compliance with United States corporate governance and accounting requirements.  
   
We will incur significant costs associated with our public company reporting requirements, costs associated with newly applicable corporate 
governance requirements, including requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and other rules implemented by the SEC. Since we had 
no obligations as a public company prior to the reverse acquisition in June 2012, we did not have any such expenses prior to that date. We expect 
all of these applicable rules and regulations to significantly increase our legal and financial compliance costs and to make some activities more 
time consuming and costly. We also expect that these applicable rules and regulations may make it more difficult and more expensive for us to 
obtain director and officer liability insurance and we may be required to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or incur substantially higher 
costs to obtain the same or similar coverage. As a result, it may be more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified individuals to serve on our 
board of directors or as executive officers. We are currently evaluating and monitoring developments with respect to these newly applicable 
rules, and we cannot predict or estimate the amount of additional costs we may incur or the timing of such costs.  
   

  

13 



     
We may not be able to meet the internal control reporting requirements imposed by the SEC resulting in a possible decline in the price of our 
common stock and our inability to obtain future financing.  

   
As directed by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the SEC adopted rules requiring each public company to include a report of management 
on the company’s internal controls over financial reporting in its annual reports. Although the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act exempts companies with a public float of less than $75 million from the requirement that our independent registered public 
accounting firm attest to our financial controls, this exemption does not affect the requirement that we include a report of management on our 
internal control over financial reporting and does not affect the requirement to include the independent registered public accounting firm’s 
attestation if our public float exceeds $75 million.  
   
While we expect to expend significant resources in developing the necessary documentation and testing procedures required by Section 404 of 
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, there is a risk that we may not be able to comply timely with all of the requirements imposed by this rule. Regardless of 
whether we are required to receive a positive attestation from our independent registered public accounting firm with respect to our internal 
controls, if we are unable to do so, investors and others may lose confidence in the reliability of our financial statements and our stock price and 
ability to obtain equity or debt financing as needed could suffer.  
   
In addition, in the event that our independent registered public accounting firm is unable to rely on our internal controls in connection with its 
audit of our financial statements, and in the further event that it is unable to devise alternative procedures in order to satisfy itself as to the 
material accuracy of our financial statements and related disclosures, it is possible that we would be unable to file our Annual Report on Form 
10-K with the SEC, which could also adversely affect the market for and the market price of our common stock and our ability to secure 
additional financing as needed.  
   
We do not carry business interruption or other insurance, so we have to bear losses ourselves.  

   
We are subject to risk inherent to our business, including equipment failure, theft, natural disasters, industrial accidents, labor disturbances, 
business interruptions, property damage, product liability, personal injury and death. We do not carry any business interruption insurance or 
third-party liability insurance or other insurance to cover risks associated with our business. As a result, if we suffer losses, damages or 
liabilities, including those caused by natural disasters or other events beyond our control and we are unable to make a claim against a third party, 
we will be required to bear all such losses from our own funds, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition 
and results of operations.  
   
We compete in an industry that is brand-conscious, and unless we are able to establish and maintain brand name recognition our sales may 
be negatively impacted.  

   
Our business is substantially dependent upon awareness and market acceptance of our brand by our targeted consumers. In 2011 we obtained the 
trademark right for the image of “Woner”, composed of an image and the Chinese characters “��.” Although we believe that we have made 
progress towards establishing market recognition for our brand in the Chinese electronics and information technology industry, it is too early in 
the product life cycle of our brand to determine whether our products and brand will achieve and maintain satisfactory levels of acceptance by 
independent distributors and retail consumers.  
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Our inability to protect our trademarks, patent and trade secrets may prevent us from successfully marketing our products and competing 
effectively.  
   
Failure to protect our intellectual property could harm our brands and our reputation, and adversely affect our ability to compete effectively. 
Further, enforcing or defending our intellectual property rights, including our trademarks, patents, copyrights and trade secrets, could result in 
the expenditure of significant financial and managerial resources. We produce, market and sell our products under the brand “Woner” (“��” in 
Chinese). We have obtained the trademark right for the image of “Woner,” composed of an image and the Chinese characters of “��”, and are 
currently applying for trademark protection for other marks in China. We cannot provide any assurance that trademark protection will be granted 
or that the grant of trademark protection will provide adequate protection for our brands. We regard our intellectual property, particularly our 
trademarks and trade secrets, to be of considerable value and importance to our business and our success. We rely on a combination of 
trademark, patent, and trade secrecy laws, and contractual provisions to protect our intellectual property rights. There can be no assurance that 
the steps taken by us to protect these proprietary rights will be adequate or that third parties will not infringe or misappropriate our trademarks, 
trade secrets or similar proprietary rights. In addition, there can be no assurance that other parties will not assert infringement claims against us, 
and we may have to pursue litigation against other parties to assert our rights. Any such claim or litigation could be costly and we may lack the 
resources required to defend against such claims. In addition, any event that would jeopardize our proprietary rights or any claims of 
infringement by third parties could have a material adverse effect on our ability to market or sell our brands, and profitably exploit our products.  

   
We may be exposed to liabilities under the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and Chinese anti-corruption law, and any determination that we 
violated these laws could have a material adverse effect on our business.  
   
We are subject to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, (“FCPA”) and other laws that prohibit improper payments or offers of payments to 
foreign governments and their officials and political parties by U.S. persons and issuers for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. We 
are also subject to Chinese anti-corruption law, which strictly prohibits the payment of bribes to government officials.  
   
We principally have operations, agreements with third parties and make sales in China, which may experience corruption. Our activities in China 
create the risk of unauthorized payments or offers of payments by one of the employees, consultants or distributors of our company, because 
these parties are not always subject to our control. We are in process of implementing an anticorruption program, which prohibits the offering or 
giving of anything of value to foreign officials, directly or indirectly, for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. We believe that to date 
we have complied in all material respects with the provisions of the FCPA and Chinese anti-corruption law. However, our existing safeguards 
and any future improvements may prove to be less than effective, and the employees, consultants or distributors of our Company may engage in 
conduct for which we might be held responsible. Violations of the FCPA or Chinese anti-corruption law may result in severe criminal or civil 
sanctions, and we may be subject to other liabilities, which could negatively affect our business, operating results and financial condition. In 
addition, the government may seek to hold our Company liable for successor liability FCPA violations committed by companies in which we 
invest or that we acquire.  
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RISKS RELATED TO DOING BUSINESS IN CHINA  
   
Uncertainties with respect to the PRC legal system could limit the legal protections available to you and us.  
   
We conduct substantially all of our business through our operating subsidiary and affiliate in the PRC. Our operating subsidiary and affiliate are 
generally subject to laws and regulations applicable to foreign investments in China and, in particular, laws applicable to foreign-invested 
enterprises. The PRC legal system is based on written statutes, and prior court decisions may be cited for reference but have limited precedential 
value. Since 1979, a series of new PRC laws and regulations have significantly enhanced the protections afforded to various forms of foreign 
investments in China. However, since the PRC legal system continues to rapidly evolve, the interpretations of many laws, regulations and rules 
are not always uniform and enforcement of these laws, regulations and rules involve uncertainties, which may limit legal protections available to 
you and us. In addition, any litigation in China may be protracted and result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and management 
attention.  
   
We are a Nevada holding company and most of our assets are located outside of the United States. All of our current business operations are 
conducted in the PRC through our VIE entity, Shenzhen Wonhe Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Wonhe”). In addition, all of our directors and 
officers are nationals and residents of countries other than the United States. A substantial portion of the assets of these persons is located outside 
the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for you to effect service of process within the United States upon these persons. It may also be 
difficult for you to enforce in U.S. courts judgments on the civil liability provisions of the U.S. federal securities laws against us and our officers 
and directors, most of whom are not residents in the United States and the substantial majority of whose assets are located outside of the United 
States. In addition, there is uncertainty as to whether the courts of the PRC would recognize or enforce judgments of U.S. courts. Courts in China 
may recognize and enforce foreign judgments in accordance with the requirements of the PRC Civil Procedures Law based on treaties between 
China and the country where the judgment is made or on reciprocity between jurisdictions. China does not have any treaties or other 
arrangements that provide for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments with the United States. In addition, according to 
the PRC Civil Procedures Law, courts in the PRC will not enforce a foreign judgment against us or our directors and officers if they decide that 
the judgment violates basic principles of PRC law or national sovereignty, security or the public interest. So it is uncertain whether a PRC court 
would enforce a judgment rendered by a court in the United States.  

   
Restrictions on currency exchange may limit our ability to receive and use our sales revenue effectively.  
   
All our sales revenue and expenses are denominated in RMB. Under PRC law, the RMB is currently convertible under the “current account,”
which includes dividends and trade and service-related foreign exchange transactions, but not under the “capital account,” which includes 
foreign direct investment and loans. Currently, our PRC operating subsidiary and affiliate may purchase foreign currencies for settlement of 
current account transactions, including payments of dividends to us, without the approval of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, or 
SAFE, by complying with certain procedural requirements. However, the relevant PRC government authorities may limit or eliminate our ability 
to purchase foreign currencies in the future. Since a significant amount of our future revenue will be denominated in RMB, any existing and 
future restrictions on currency exchange may limit our ability to utilize revenue generated in RMB to fund our business activities outside China 
that are denominated in foreign currencies.  
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Foreign exchange transactions by our PRC operating subsidiary under the capital account continue to be subject to significant foreign exchange 
controls and require the approval of or need to register with PRC government authorities, including SAFE. In particular, if our PRC operating 
subsidiary borrows foreign currency through loans from us or other foreign lenders, these loans must be registered with SAFE, and if we finance 
the subsidiary by means of additional capital contributions, these capital contributions must be approved by certain government authorities, 
including the Ministry of Commerce, or MOFCOM, or their respective local counterparts. These limitations could affect their ability to obtain 
foreign exchange through debt or equity financing.  
   
Fluctuations in exchange rates could adversely affect our business and the value of our securities.  
   
The value of our common stock will be indirectly affected by the foreign exchange rate between U.S. dollars and RMB and between those 
currencies and other currencies in which our sales may be denominated. Appreciation or depreciation in the value of the RMB relative to the 
U.S. dollar would affect our financial results reported in U.S. dollar terms without giving effect to any underlying change in our business or 
results of operations. Fluctuations in the exchange rate will also affect the relative value of any dividend we issue that will be exchanged into 
U.S. dollars as well as earnings from, and the value of, any U.S. dollar-denominated investments we make in the future.  

   
Since July 2005, the RMB is no longer pegged to the U.S. dollar. Although the People’s Bank of China regularly intervenes in the foreign 
exchange market to prevent significant short-term fluctuations in the exchange rate, the RMB may appreciate or depreciate significantly in value 
against the U.S. dollar in the medium to long term. Moreover, it is possible that in the future PRC authorities may lift restrictions on fluctuations 
in the RMB exchange rate and lessen intervention in the foreign exchange market.  
   
Very limited hedging transactions are available in China to reduce our exposure to exchange rate fluctuations. To date, we have not entered into 
any hedging transactions. While we may enter into hedging transactions in the future, the availability and effectiveness of these transactions may 
be limited, and we may not be able to successfully hedge our exposure at all. In addition, our foreign currency exchange losses may be magnified 
by PRC exchange control regulations that restrict our ability to convert RMB into foreign currencies.  
   
Restrictions under PRC law on our PRC subsidiary's ability to make dividend and other distributions could materially and adversely affect 
our ability to grow, make investments or complete acquisitions that could benefit our business, pay dividends to you, and otherwise fund and 
conduct our businesses.  
   
Substantially all of our revenues are earned by our PRC subsidiary. However, PRC regulations restrict the ability of our PRC subsidiary to make 
dividend and other payments to its offshore parent company. PRC legal restrictions permit payments of dividend by our PRC subsidiary only out 
of its accumulated after-tax profits, if any, determined in accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations. Our PRC subsidiary is also 
required under PRC laws and regulations to allocate at least 10% of our annual after-tax profits determined in accordance with PRC GAAP to a 
statutory general reserve fund until the amounts in said fund reaches 50% of our registered capital. Allocations to these statutory reserve funds 
can only be used for specific purposes and are not transferable to us in the form of loans, advances or cash dividends. Any limitations on the 
ability of our PRC subsidiary to transfer funds to us could materially and adversely limit our ability to grow, make investments or acquisitions 
that could be beneficial to our business, pay dividends and otherwise fund and conduct our business.  
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Under the EIT Law, we may be classified as a "resident enterprise" of China. Such classification will likely result in unfavorable tax 
consequences to us and our non-PRC stockholders.  
   
Under the New Income Tax Law, enterprises established outside the PRC whose “de facto management bodies” are located in the PRC are 
considered “resident enterprises” and their global income will generally be subject to the uniform 25% enterprise income tax rate. On December 
6, 2007, the PRC State Council promulgated the Implementation Regulations on the New Income Tax Law, which define “de facto management 
bodies” as bodies that have material and overall management control over the business, personnel, accounts and properties of an enterprise. In 
addition, a circular issued by the State Administration of Taxation on April 22, 2009 provides that a foreign enterprise controlled by a PRC 
company or a PRC company group will be classified as a “resident enterprise” with its “de facto management bodies” located within the PRC if 
the following requirements are satisfied:  
   

   

           
Because the EIT Law, its implementing rules and the recent circular are relatively new, no official interpretation or application of this new 
“resident enterprise” classification is available. Therefore, it is unclear how tax authorities will determine tax residency based on the facts of 
each case.  
   
If the PRC tax authorities determine that we are a “resident enterprise” for PRC enterprise income tax purposes, a number of unfavorable PRC 
tax consequences could follow. First, we may be subject to the enterprise income tax at a rate of 25% on our worldwide taxable income as well 
as PRC enterprise income tax reporting obligations. In our case, this would mean that non-China source income would be subject to PRC 
enterprise income tax at a rate of 25%. Second, although under the EIT Law and its implementing rules dividends paid to us from our PRC 
subsidiary would qualify as “tax-exempt income,” we cannot guarantee that such dividends will not be subject to a 10% withholding tax, as the 
PRC foreign exchange control authorities, which enforce the withholding tax, have not yet issued guidance with respect to the processing of 
outbound remittances to entities that are treated as resident enterprises for PRC enterprise income tax purposes. Finally, it is possible that future 
guidance issued with respect to the new “resident enterprise” classification could result in a situation in which a 10% withholding tax is imposed 
on dividends we pay to our non-PRC stockholders and with respect to gains derived by our non-PRC stockholders from transferring our shares.  
   
If we were treated as a “resident enterprise” by PRC tax authorities, we would be subject to taxation in both the U.S. and China, and our PRC tax 
may not be creditable against our U.S. tax.  
   

  

  (i) the senior management and core management departments in charge of its daily operations function mainly in the PRC; 
        
  (ii) its financial and human resources decisions are subject to determination or approval by persons or bodies in the PRC;     

  (iii) its major assets, accounting books, company seals, and minutes and files of its board and shareholders' meetings are located or kept in 
the PRC; and 

      
  (iv) more than half of the enterprise's directors or senior management with voting rights reside in the PRC. 
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If the China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) or another PRC regulatory agency determines that CSRC approval was required 
in connection with the reverse acquisition of World Win, the reverse acquisition may be unwound, or we may become subject to penalties.  
   
On August 8, 2006, six PRC regulatory agencies, including the CSRC, promulgated the Provisions Regarding Mergers and Acquisitions of 
Domestic Enterprises by Foreign Investors (the “ M&A Rule”) , which became effective on September 8, 2006. The M&A Rule, among other 
things, requires that an offshore company controlled by PRC companies or individuals that have acquired a PRC domestic company for the 
purpose of listing the PRC domestic company's equity interest on an overseas stock exchange must obtain the approval of the CSRC prior to the 
listing and trading of such offshore company's securities on an overseas stock exchange. In addition, when an offshore company acquires a PRC 
domestic company, the offshore company is generally required to pay the acquisition consideration within three months after the issuance of the 
foreign-invested company license unless certain ratification from the relevant PRC regulatory agency is obtained. On September 21, 2006, the 
CSRC, pursuant to the M&A Rule, published on its official web site procedures specifying documents and materials required to be submitted to 
it by offshore companies seeking CSRC approval of their overseas listings.  
   
We believe the M&A Rule mandating CSRC approval for acquisition of a PRC domestic company by an offshore company controlled by PRC 
companies or individuals should not apply to our reverse acquisition of World Win because none of World Win, Kuayu or Shengshihe 
Consulting was a “Special Purpose Vehicle” or an “offshore company controlled by PRC companies or individuals” at the moment of 
acquisition. However, we cannot assure you that we would be able to obtain the approval required from MOFCOM. If the PRC regulatory 
authorities take the view that the reverse acquisition of World Win constituted a round-trip investment without MOFCOM approval, they could 
invalidate our acquisition and ownership of World Win.  
   
The M&A Rule establishes more complex procedures for some acquisitions of Chinese companies by foreign investors, which could make it 
more difficult for us to pursue growth through acquisitions in China.  
   
The M&A Rule establishes additional procedures and requirements that could make some acquisitions of Chinese companies by foreign 
investors more time-consuming and complex, including requirements in some instances that the PRC Ministry of Commerce be notified in 
advance of any change-of-control transaction, and in some situations require approval of the PRC Ministry of Commerce when a foreign investor 
takes control of a Chinese domestic enterprise. In the future, we may grow our business in part by acquiring complementary businesses, although 
we do not have any plans to do so at this time. The M&A Rule also requires PRC Ministry of Commerce anti-trust review of any change-of-
control transactions involving certain types of foreign acquirers. Complying with the requirements of the M&A Rule to complete such 
transactions could be time-consuming, and any required approval processes, including obtaining approval from the PRC Ministry of Commerce, 
may delay or inhibit our ability to complete such transactions, which could affect our ability to expand our business or maintain our market 
share.  
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Failure to comply with PRC regulations relating to the establishment of offshore special purpose companies by PRC residents may subject 
our PRC resident shareholders to personal liability, limit our ability to acquire PRC companies or to inject capital into our PRC subsidiary or 
affiliate, limit our PRC subsidiary’s and affiliate’s ability to distribute profits to us or otherwise materially adversely affect us.  

   
In October 2005, SAFE issued the Notice on Relevant Issues in the Foreign Exchange Control over Financing and Return Investment Through 
Special Purpose Companies by Residents Inside China, generally referred to as Circular 75, which required PRC residents to register with the 
competent local SAFE branch before establishing or acquiring control over an offshore special purpose company, or SPV, for the purpose of 
engaging in an equity financing outside of China on the strength of domestic PRC assets originally held by those residents. Internal 
implementing guidelines issued by SAFE, which became public in June 2007 (known as Notice 106), expanded the reach of Circular 75 by (1) 
purporting to cover the establishment or acquisition of control by PRC residents of offshore entities which merely acquire “control” over 
domestic companies or assets, even in the absence of legal ownership; (2) adding requirements relating to the source of the PRC resident’s funds 
used to establish or acquire the offshore entity; covering the use of existing offshore entities for offshore financings; (3) purporting to cover 
situations in which an offshore SPV establishes a new subsidiary in China or acquires an unrelated company or unrelated assets in China; and (4) 
making the domestic affiliate of the SPV responsible for the accuracy of certain documents which must be filed in connection with any such 
registration, notably, the business plan which describes the overseas financing and the use of proceeds.  Amendments to registrations made under 
Circular 75 are required in connection with any increase or decrease of capital, transfer of shares, mergers and acquisitions, equity investment or 
creation of any security interest in any assets located in China to guarantee offshore obligations, and Notice 106 makes the offshore SPV jointly 
responsible for these filings. In the case of an SPV which was established, and which acquired a related domestic company or assets, before the 
implementation date of Circular 75, a retroactive SAFE registration was required to have been completed before March 31, 2006; this date was 
subsequently extended indefinitely by Notice 106, which also required that the registrant establish that all foreign exchange transactions 
undertaken by the SPV and its affiliates were in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  Failure to comply with the requirements of 
Circular 75, as applied by SAFE in accordance with Notice 106, may result in fines and other penalties under PRC laws for evasion of applicable 
foreign exchange restrictions. Any such failure could also result in the SPV’s affiliates being impeded or prevented from distributing their profits 
and the proceeds from any reduction in capital, share transfer or liquidation to the SPV, or from engaging in other transfers of funds into or out 
of China.  
   
We have advised our shareholders who are PRC residents, as defined in Circular 75, to register with the relevant branch of SAFE, as currently 
required, in connection with their equity interests in us and our acquisitions of equity interests in our PRC subsidiary and affiliate. However, we 
cannot provide any assurances that their existing registrations have fully complied with, and they have made all necessary amendments to their 
registration to fully comply with, all applicable registrations or approvals required by Circular 75. Moreover, because of uncertainty over how 
Circular 75 will be interpreted and implemented, and how or whether SAFE will apply it to us, we cannot predict how it will affect our business 
operations or future strategies. For example, our present and prospective PRC subsidiary’s and affiliate’s ability to conduct foreign exchange 
activities, such as the remittance of dividends and foreign currency-denominated borrowings, may be subject to compliance with Circular 75 by 
our PRC resident beneficial holders. In addition, such PRC residents may not always be able to complete the necessary registration procedures 
required by Circular 75. We also have little control over either our present or prospective direct or indirect shareholders or the outcome of such 
registration procedures. A failure by our PRC resident beneficial holders or future PRC resident shareholders to comply with Circular 75, if 
SAFE requires it, could subject these PRC resident beneficial holders to fines or legal sanctions, restrict our overseas or cross-border investment 
activities, limit our subsidiary’s and affiliate’s ability to make distributions or pay dividends or affect our ownership structure, which could 
adversely affect our business and prospects.  
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RISKS RELATING TO THE VIE AGREEMENTS  
   
The PRC government may determine that the VIE Agreements are not in compliance with applicable PRC laws, rules and regulations.  
   
Shengshihe Consulting provides support and consulting service to Shenzhen Wonhe pursuant to the VIE Agreements.  Almost all economic 
benefits and risks arising from Shenzhen Wonhe’s operations are transferred to Shengshihe Consulting under these agreements.  There are risks 
involved with the operation of our business in reliance on the VIE Agreements, including the risk that the VIE Agreements may be determined 
by PRC regulators or courts to be unenforceable.  Our PRC counsel has provided a legal opinion that the VIE Agreements are binding and 
enforceable under PRC law, but has further advised that if the VIE Agreements were for any reason determined to be in breach of any existing or 
future PRC laws or regulations, the relevant regulatory authorities would have broad discretion in dealing with such breach, including:  
   

   
Any of these actions could adversely affect our ability to manage, operate and gain the financial benefits of Shenzhen Wonhe, which would have 
a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.  
   
Our ability to control Shenzhen Wonhe under the VIE Agreements may not be as effective as direct ownership.  
   
We conduct our business in the PRC and generate virtually all of our revenues through the VIE Agreements. Our plans for future growth are 
based substantially on growing the operations of Shenzhen Wonhe.  However, the VIE Agreements may not be as effective in providing us with 
control over Shenzhen Wonhe as direct ownership.  The VIE Agreements do not provide us with day-to-day control over the operations of 
Shenzhen Wonhe.  Under the current VIE arrangements, as a legal matter, if Shenzhen Wonhe fails to perform its obligations under these 
contractual arrangements, we may have to (i) incur substantial costs and resources to enforce such arrangements, and (ii) rely on legal remedies 
under PRC law, which we cannot be sure would be effective. Therefore, if we are unable to effectively control Shenzhen Wonhe, it may have an 
adverse effect on our ability to achieve our business objectives and grow our revenues.  
   
As the VIE Agreements are governed by PRC law, we would be required to rely on PRC law to enforce our rights and remedies under them; 
PRC law may not provide us with the same rights and remedies as are available in contractual disputes governed by the law of other 
jurisdictions.  
   
The VIE Agreements are governed by PRC law and provide for the resolution of disputes through the jurisdiction of courts in the PRC.  If 
Shenzhen Wonhe or its shareholders fail to perform the obligations under the VIE Agreements, we would be required to resort to legal remedies 
available under PRC law, including seeking specific performance or injunctive relief, or claiming damages. We cannot be sure that such 
remedies would provide us with effective means of causing Shenzhen Wonhe or its shareholder to meet their obligations, or recovering any 
losses or damages as a result of non-performance. Further, the legal environment in China is not as developed as in other jurisdictions. 
Uncertainties in the application of various laws, rules, regulations or policies in PRC legal system could limit our liability to enforce the VIE 
Agreements and protect our interests.  
   

  

  ● imposing economic penalties;  
      
  ● discontinuing or restricting the operations of Shengshihe Consulting or Shenzhen Wonhe;  
      
  ● imposing conditions or requirements in respect of the VIE Agreements with which Shengshihe Consulting or Shenzhen Wonhe may not 

be able to comply;  
      
  ● requiring our company to restructure the relevant ownership structure or operations;  
      
  ● taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could adversely affect our company’s business; and  
      
  ● revoking the business licenses and/or the licenses or certificates of Shenzhen Wonhe, and/or voiding the VIE Agreements.  
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The payment arrangement under the VIE Agreements may be challenged by the PRC tax authorities.  
   
We generate our revenues through the payments we receive pursuant to the VIE Agreements. We could face adverse tax consequences if the 
PRC tax authorities determine that the VIE Agreements were not entered into based on arm’s length negotiations. For example, PRC tax 
authorities may adjust our income and expenses for PRC tax purposes which could result in our being subject to higher tax liability, or cause 
other adverse financial consequences.  
   
Our Shareholders have potential conflicts of interest with our company which may adversely affect our business.  

   
Qing Tong is our Chairman, Nanfang Tong is our CEO and one of our directors, and Jingwu Li is one of our directors, and they are also three of 
the four shareholders of Shenzhen Wonhe.  There could be conflicts that arise from time to time between our interests and the interests of 
Messrs. Tong, Tong and Li.  There could also be conflicts that arise between us and Shenzhen Wonhe that would require our shareholders and 
Shenzhen Wonhe's shareholders to vote on corporate actions necessary to resolve the conflict.  There can be no assurance in any such 
circumstances that Messrs. Tong, Tong and Li will vote their shares in our best interest or otherwise act in the best interests of our company.  If 
Messrs. Tong, Tong and Li fail to act in our best interests, our operating performance and future growth could be adversely affected.  
   
We rely on the approval certificates and business license held by Shengshihe Consulting and any deterioration of the relationship between 
Shengshihe Consulting and Shenzhen Wonhe could materially and adversely affect our business operations.  
   
We operate our business in China on the basis of the approval certificates, business and other requisite licenses held by Shengshihe Consulting 
and Shenzhen Wonhe.  There is no assurance that Shengshihe Consulting and Shenzhen Wonhe will be able to renew their licenses or certificates 
when their terms expire with substantially similar terms as the ones they currently hold.  
   
Further, our relationship with Shenzhen Wonhe is governed by the VIE Agreements that are intended to provide us with effective control over 
the business operations of Shenzhen Wonhe.  However, the VIE Agreements may not be effective in providing control over the application for 
and maintenance of the licenses required for our business operations.  Shenzhen Wonhe could violate the VIE Agreements, go bankrupt, suffer 
from difficulties in its business or otherwise become unable to perform its obligations under the VIE Agreements and, as a result, our operations, 
reputation and business could be severely harmed.  
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RISKS RELATED TO THE MARKET FOR OUR STOCK GENERALLY   
   
There is only a very limited market for our Common Stock.  
   
While our common stock is listing for quotation on the OTCQB, there is currently little trading in our common stock. We cannot provide any 
assurances as to when an active market will develop for our common stock.  
   
Our common stock is subject to penny stock rules.  
   
Our common stock is subject to Rule 15g-1 through 15g-9 under the Exchange Act, which imposes certain sales practice requirements on 
broker-dealers which sell our common stock to persons other than established customers and “accredited investors” (generally, individuals with 
net worth's in excess of $1,000,000 or annual incomes exceeding $200,000 (or $300,000 together with their spouses)). For transactions covered 
by this rule, a broker-dealer must make a special suitability determination for the purchaser and have received the purchaser's written consent to 
the transaction prior to the sale. This rule adversely affects the ability of broker-dealers to sell our common stock and the ability of our 
stockholders to sell their shares of common stock.  
   
Additionally, our common stock is subject to the SEC regulations for “penny stock.” Penny stock includes any equity security that is not listed 
on a national exchange and has a market price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions. The regulations require that prior to any 
non-exempt buy/sell transaction in a penny stock, a disclosure schedule set forth by the SEC relating to the penny stock market must be 
delivered to the purchaser of such penny stock. This disclosure must include the amount of commissions payable to both the broker-dealer and 
the registered representative and current price quotations for the common stock. The regulations also require that monthly statements be sent to 
holders of penny stock that disclose recent price information for the penny stock and information of the limited market for penny stocks. These 
requirements adversely affect the market liquidity of our common stock.  

   
Certain provisions of our Articles of Incorporation may make it more difficult for a third party to effect a change-of-control.  
   
Our Articles of Incorporation authorizes the board of directors to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series. The 
terms of the preferred stock may include preferences as to dividends and liquidation, conversion rights, redemption rights and sinking fund 
provisions. The issuance of any preferred stock could diminish the rights of holders of our common stock, and therefore could reduce the value 
of such common stock. In addition, specific rights granted to future holders of preferred stock could be used to restrict our ability to merge with, 
or sell assets to, a third party. The ability of the board of directors to issue preferred stock could make it more difficult, delay, discourage, 
prevent or make it more costly to acquire or effect a change-in-control, which in turn could prevent our stockholders from recognizing a gain in 
the event that a favorable offer is extended and could materially and negatively affect the market price of our common stock.  
   

   
Not Applicable.  
   

   
We occupy our principal executive offices in Shenzhen, China at a current monthly rental of approximately $9,579. Our lease for the premises 
expires on August 31, 2015.    

   
We expect that our current facilities will be adequate for our operations for the foreseeable future.  
   

  

ITEM 1B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
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None.  

   

   
Not Applicable.  
   

PART II  
   

   
(a) Market Information  
   
Our common stock has been listed for quotation on the OTCQB since October 21, 2011. It is currently listed under the symbol 

“WHHT.” The following table sets forth for the respective periods indicated the prices of the common stock, as reported by the OTCQB. Such 
prices are based on inter-dealer bid and asked prices, without markup, markdown, commissions, or adjustments and may not represent actual 
transactions.  
   

   
(b) Shareholders  
   
On March 31, 2015 there were 6,255 holders of record of our common stock.  

   
(c) Dividends  
   
Since the Company’s incorporation, no dividends have been paid on our Common Stock. We intend to retain any earnings for use in our 

business activities, so it is not expected that any dividends on our common stock will be declared and paid in the foreseeable future.  
   

(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans  
   

The information set forth in the table below regarding equity compensation plans (which include individual compensation 
arrangements) was determined as of December 31, 2014.  

   

   

  

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT ’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER 
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES. 

    Bid   

Quarter Ending   High     Low   
March 31, 2013   $ 3.00     $ 1.90   
June 30, 2013   $ 2.38     $ 1.60   
September 30, 2013   $ 1.67     $ 1.35   
December 31, 2013   $ 1.58     $ 1.50   
                  
March 31, 2014   $ 3.60     $ 1.50   
June 30, 2014   $ 3.60     $ 3.60   
September 30, 2014   $ 3.80     $ 1.95   
December 31, 2014   $ 3.80     $ 1.11   

    

Number of 
securities to 

be issued 
upon exercise 
of outstanding 

options, 
warrants and 

rights     

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
of outstanding 

options, 
warrants and 

rights   

Number of 
securities 
remaining 

available for 
future 

issuance 
under equity 
compensation 

plans   
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders     0     N.A.     0   
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders     0     N.A.     0   

Total     0     N.A.     0   
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(e) Sale of Unregistered Securities  
   
Wonhe High-Tech International did not effect any unregistered sales of equity securities during the quarter ended December 31, 2014.  

   
(f) Repurchase of Equity Securities  
   
Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. did not repurchase any of its equity securities that were registered under Section 12 of the 

Securities Act during the quarter ended December 31, 2014.  
   

   
Not applicable.  

    

   
On May 30, 2012, Shengshihe Consulting and Shenzhen Wonhe and its shareholders Youliang Wang, Qing Tong, Jingwu Li and Nanfang Tong 
(together referred to as “Shenzhen Wonhe Shareholders”) entered into a series of agreements known as variable interest agreements (the “VIE 
Agreements”) pursuant to which Shenzhen Wonhe became Shengshihe Consulting’s contractually controlled affiliate. The use of VIE 
agreements is a common structure used to acquire PRC corporations, particularly in certain industries in which foreign investment is restricted or 
forbidden by the PRC government. The VIE Agreements included:  

   

   

  

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITIONS A ND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

  (1) Exclusive Technical Service and Business Consulting Agreement between Shengshihe Consulting and Shenzhen Wonhe pursuant to 
which Shengshihe Consulting is granted the exclusive right and undertakes the obligation to provide technical support and management 
consulting services to Shenzhen Wonhe, such services being designed to encompass all aspects of the business of Shenzhen Wonhe.  In 
exchange for the services to be provided by Shengshihe Consulting, Shenzhen Wonhe is required to pay to Shengshihe Consulting (i) 
95% of the total annual net profit of Shenzhen Wonhe and (ii) RMB50,000 per month (U.S.$8,135).  The fee for services payable to 
Shengshihe Consulting, therefore, represents all but a small percentage of the net income generated by Shenzhen Wonhe.  The 
Exclusive Technical Service and Business Consulting Agreement can be terminated only by mutual agreement of the two parties. 
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The accounting effect of the VIE Agreements between Shengshihe Consulting and Shenzhen Wonhe is to cause the balance sheets and financial 
results of Shenzhen Wonhe to be consolidated with those of Shengshihe Consulting, with respect to which Shenzhen Wonhe is now deemed a 
variable interest entity.  Since the entities that are parties to the VIE Agreements were under common control at the time when the VIE 
Agreements were executed, the financial statements included in this report reflect the consolidation of the results of operations and cash flows of 
Shenzhen Wonhe.  
   
The Company believes that Shengshihe Consulting’s contractual agreements with Shenzhen Wonhe are in compliance with PRC law and are 
legally enforceable.  The Shenzhen Wonhe Shareholders are also the senior management of the Company and therefore the Company believes 
that they have no current interest in seeking to act contrary to the contractual arrangements.  However, Shenzhen Wonhe and its stockholders 
may fail to take certain actions required for the Company’s business or to follow the Company’s instructions despite their contractual obligations 
to do so.  Furthermore, if Shenzhen Wonhe or its stockholders do not act in the best interests of the Company under the contractual arrangements 
and any dispute relating to these contractual arrangements remains unresolved, the Company will have to enforce its rights under these 
contractual arrangements through the operations of PRC law and courts and therefore will be subject to uncertainties in the PRC legal system.  
   

  

  (2) Call Option Agreement among the Shenzhen Wonhe Shareholders and Shengshihe Consulting under which the Shenzhen Wonhe 
Shareholders have granted to Shengshihe Consulting the irrevocable right and option to acquire all of the equity interests in Shenzhen 
Wonhe to the extent permitted by PRC law. If PRC law limits the percentage of Shenzhen Wonhe that Shengshihe Consulting may 
purchase at any time, then Shengshihe Consulting may repeatedly exercise its option in such increments as may be allowed by PRC 
law. The exercise price of the option is RMB1.00 ($0.16) or any lower price permitted by PRC law. The Shenzhen Wonhe Shareholders 
agreed to refrain from taking certain actions which might harm the value of Shenzhen Wonhe or Shengshihe Consulting’s option.  In 
addition, the Call Option Agreement gives to Shengshihe Consulting the right of prior approval of any significant action by Shenzhen 
Wonhe, including appointment of management, sale of assets or equity, distribution of profits, or entry into any material 
agreement.  The Call Option Agreement will not terminate until the option is fully exercised. 

  (3) Proxy Agreement by the Shenzhen Wonhe Shareholders pursuant to which they each authorize Shengshihe Consulting to designate 
someone to exercise all of their shareholder rights with respect to Shenzhen Wonhe.  The Proxy Agreement states that Shengshihe 
Consulting will be entitled to all information regarding Shenzhen Wonhe’s operations, business, clients, accounting and employees in 
order to perform its function under the Proxy Agreement.  The Proxy Agreement has no termination date nor any termination clause, 
and is binding on each Shenzhen Wonhe Shareholder as long as he owns equity in Shenzhen Wonhe. 

  (4) Share Pledge Agreement among the Shenzhen Wonhe Shareholders, Shenzhen Wonhe, and Shengshihe Consulting under which the 
Shenzhen Wonhe Shareholders have pledged all of their equity in Shenzhen Wonhe to Shengshihe Consulting to guarantee Shenzhen 
Wonhe’s and Shenzhen Wonhe Shareholders’ performance of their obligations under the Exclusive Technical Service and Business 
Consulting Agreement, the Call Option Agreement and the Proxy Agreement.  In the event of a default under any of those agreements, 
Shengshihe Consulting will be entitled to auction the equity interests of the Shenzhen Wonhe Shareholders and shall receive a priority 
payment from the auction proceeds to the extent of its unpaid receivable.  The Share Pledge Agreement will not terminate until all 
obligations under the three other agreements have been satisfied. 
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All of these contractual arrangements are governed by PRC law and provide for the resolution of disputes through arbitration in the PRC. 
Accordingly, these contracts would be interpreted in accordance with PRC law and any disputes would be resolved in accordance with PRC 
legal procedures.  As a result, uncertainties in the PRC legal system could limit the Company’s ability to enforce these contractual arrangements, 
which may make it difficult to exert effective control over Shenzhen Wonhe, and its ability to conduct the Company’s business may be adversely 
affected. The VIE Agreements with our Chinese affiliate and its shareholders, which relate to critical aspects of our operations, may not be as 
effective in providing operational control as direct ownership.  
   
Results of Operations  

   
The following table sets forth in U.S. dollars key components of our results of operations during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, 
and the percentage change between comparable numbers recorded in 2014 and 2013.  
   

   
Sales . We commenced sales of our HMC660 products in December 2011. As a result of pre-marketing during 2011 and an advertising program 
in 2012 , sales grew rapidly in 2012 and the first six months of 2013, albeit entirely within Guangdong Province.  During the third quarter, 
however, we announced that we were developing a second generation home media center in order to expand our potential market.   In order to 
achieve successful entry into other provinces, our product had to be redesigned to meet the purchasing standards of the local State 
Administration of Radio Film and Television (“SARFT”), as the customer group in other provinces that does not receive service through SARFT 
is dominated by local media companies.  
   
As a result of our announcement that a second generation product was being developed, demand for our first generation product fell 
significantly.  Sales in the third quarter of 2013 fell by 27% from the third quarter of 2012; sales in the fourth quarter of 2013 were only 
$814,816. Toward the end of 2013 we terminated production of the HMC660, and during the first three quarters of 2014 we recorded no sales, as 
we awaited the new product.  
   
On October 15, 2014, our second generation home media center, the HMC720, passed the stability test given by Dongguan Yueshi Electronic 
Products Test Co., Ltd., which was the final pre-requisite before we could introduce it to the market. In the fourth quarter of 2014 we liquidated 
our remaining inventory of the HMC600 at a discounted price of $285,417, and commenced sales of the HMC720. Total revenue for 2014, all of 
which was recorded in the 4th quarter, was $ 6,195,31 3.  
   

  

    
Years Ended  
December 31     

Percentage  
Increase/   

    2014     2013     (Decrease)   
Sales   $ 6,195,313     $ 25,474,097       (76 )% 
Gross Profit     2,938,024       12,255,433       (76 )% 
Operating Income     2,178,318       10,888,736       (80 )% 
Net income attributable to common stockholders   $ 1,896,942     $ 12,399,519       (85 )% 
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Income from Operations.   Our operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2014 decreased to $759,706 from $1,366,697 for the year 
ended December 31, 2013.  The primary reason for the decrease was the significant decrease in sales. The components of our operating expenses 
were:   
   

   

   

   
General and administrative expenses are affected by changes in employees’ remuneration. Shenzhen Wonhe is required to make contributions to 
multi-employer welfare programs by government regulation sometimes identified as the Mainland China Contribution Plan.  Specifically, the 
following regulations require that we pay a percentage of employee salaries into the specified plans:  
   

   

   
Because our contributions are proportionate to salaries paid, as labor rates in China have increased significantly in recent years and can be 
expected to continue to increase.  Any such increases will in turn cause an increase in the amount we pay to employee welfare plans.  

   
After deducting these operating expenses, for the years ended December 31, 2014 we realized operating income of $2,178,318, a decrease of 
$8,710,418 or 80%, from the operating income of $10,888,736 that we reported in the year ended December 31, 2013.  
   

  

  ● Research and development expenses.   Research and development expenses are primarily comprised of salaries for R&D employees. 
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, our research and development expenses were $92,956 and $156,172, 
respectively.  The primary reason for the 40% year-to-year decrease was the completion of the research effort related to HMC720 early 
in 2014. 

  ● Selling and Marketing Expenses.   Selling and marketing expenses were primarily comprised of salaries and advertising expenses. 
Even though we terminated sales at the beginning of 2014,  we continued to invest in market promotions in order to enhance the impact 
of the Company. Selling and marketing expenses decreased by 57% to $177,036 for the years ended December 31, 2014 from $415,933 
for the years ended December 31, 2013. 

  ● General and Administrative Expenses . Our general and administrative (“G&A”) expenses were primarily comprised of rent, 
administrative employees’ salaries, professional service expenses and other expenses incurred for G&A functions. G&A expenses 
decreased to $489,714 for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $794,592 for the year ended December 31, 2013, representing a 
38% decrease. The decrease was primarily due to the  significant decrease in sales . 

Regulation   Plan   % of Salary   
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone Social Retirement Insurance Regulations   Pension     13 % 
Shenzhen Work-Related Injury Insurance Regulations   Workers Comp.     0.4 % 
Guangdong Unemployment Insurance Regulations   Unemployment     2 % 
Housing Provident Fund Management Regulations   Housing     5 % 
Shenzhen Social Medical Insurance Measures   Medical     6.5% or 0.6 %* 
Guangdong Employees Maternity Insurance   Maternity     0.5% or 0.2 %* 

* Depending on their position in the company, employees receive either hospitalization medical and maternity insurance or comprehensive 
medical and maternity insurance, which is a lower premium. 
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Interest Income.   Our only non-operating income during 2014 and 2013 was interest income. Our interest income of $111,353 in 2014 was an 
increase over $87,840 due to slightly higher interest rates prevailing in 2014.  
   
Provision for Income Taxes .  
Beginning in 2013, our operating entity received a preferential tax treatment from the PRC State Administration of Taxation.  Shenzhen Wonhe 
will be entitled to a two-year exemption from the Enterprise Income Tax followed by a three year 50% reduction in its Enterprise Income Tax 
rate. On May 10, 2013, we were informed by the local tax bureau that the income tax paid as of the date of notification of RMB 16,107,114 
($2,615,795) could be used to offset our future income tax after the tax exemption period.  
   
The Company's full income tax exemption expired on December 31, 2013. From Jan 1, 2014 and for the three years following, we will have the 
benefit of a 50% reduction in Enterprise Income Tax. As a result, a tax provision of $295,973 was recorded for the year ended December 31, 
2014.  
   
Net Income (loss) .  We reported net income of $1,993,698 and $13,049,151 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The 
VIE agreements assign to Shengshihe Consulting 95% of the net profit generated from Shenzhen Wonhe.  For that reason, we deducted a”non-
controlling interest” of $96,756 for the year ended December 31, 2014 and $649,632 for the year ended December 31, 2013 before recognizing 
net income attributable to the common stockholders on our Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income. After that, our net 
income attributable to the common stockholders’ for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $1,896,942, $.05 per share, and 
$12,399,519, $0.37 per share, respectively.  
   
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment.  Our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar. Our local currency, Renminbi (RMB), is our functional 
currency. Results of operations and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates during the period, and assets and liabilities are translated 
at the unified exchange rate as quoted by the People’s Bank of China as of the balance sheet dates. Translation adjustments resulting from this 
process are included in accumulated other comprehensive income in the statement of stockholders’ equity. Transaction gains and losses that arise 
from exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are included in the results of 
operations as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, foreign currency translation adjustments of ($258,031) and $695,960, 
have been reported as other comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of income and other comprehensive income.  

   
Liquidity and Capital Resources  
   
To date, we have financed our operations primarily through cash flows from our operations and equity contributions by our shareholders.  As a 
result, at December 31, 2014, our only debt consisted of $241,561 that we have borrowed from stockholders, primarily in order to obtain U.S. 
Dollars to pay the expenses of our parent corporation, principally comprised of professional fees.  At December 31, 2014,  our working capital 
totaled $37,124,153, an increase of $2,134,654 since December 31, 2013.  
   
Our  cash and cash equivalents of $34,447,100 primarily consist of cash on hand and demand deposits.  That entire amount is held in the 
PRC:  $218,834 by our subsidiary and $34,228,266 by Shenzhen Wonhe, our VIE.  Our ability to repatriate those amounts to the United States 
will be limited by the factors discussed below in “Restrictions on Transfer of Funds.”  
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In addition to cash and cash equivalents, our working capital included $3,267,810 in accounts receivables. This represented over 52% of our 
annual sales, due to the fact that we did not realize any sales in 2014 until the fourth quarter.    

   
The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods indicated:  
   

   
Operating activities  
   
Our operations used $541,346 in cash during 2014.  We had net cash used in operations, despite net income, because all of our sales occurred in 
the 4th quarter, resulting in a large balance of accounts receivable at year end.  
   
Since we purchase the HMC720 from our manufacturer on the basis of orders received from distributors, we had no inventory at December 31, 
2014. The inventory of HMC660 and related raw materials that remained on hand at December 31, 2013 were liquidated during 2014. Our 
ability to utilize contract manufacturers allows us to operation without devoting significant amounts of cash to inventory, which will aid our cash 
flow in the future.  

   
Investing activities  

   
Because we outsource all of our manufacturing operations, our cash flows can be dedicated to working capital – during the years ended 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 we made no capital investments.  Unless we expand our business activities in the future, investing activities will 
involve insignificant amounts of cash.  

    
Financing activities  

   
The net cash provided by financing activities of $98,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014 represented an additional loan from related 
parties to allow us to pay professional fees in the U.S. During the year ended December 31, 2013 we sold common stock and received proceeds 
of $9,912,000.  

   
We believe that our cash on hand and cash flow from operations will meet our cash needs for the next 12 months.  
   

  

    

Years Ended 
December 31, 

 
2014     

Years Ended 
December 31, 

 
2013   

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities   $ (541,346 )   $ 19,224,618   
Net cash provided by investing activities     -      -  
Net cash provided by financing activities     98,000       10,017,000   
Effects of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash     (255,799 )     688,889   
Net  Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents     (699,145 )     29,930,507   
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Period     35,146,245       5,215,738   
Cash and Cash Equivalent at End of the Period   $ 34,447,100     $ 35,146,245   
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Restrictions on Transfers of Funds  

   
The VIE Agreements among Shengshihe Consulting and the Shenzhen Wonhe Shareholders provide that Shengshihe Consulting is entitled to 
95% of the net profits (and will bear all losses) arising from Shenzhen Wonhe’s operations plus a monthly fee of RMB 50,000.  The VIE 
Agreements also entitle Shengshihe Consulting to manage the operations and control the cash flows of Shenzhen Wonhe.   Although Shengshihe 
Consulting is entitled to Shenzhen Wonhe’s profits, any distributions of such profits from Shengshihe Consulting to our U.S. parent company 
must comply with applicable Chinese laws affecting payments from Chinese companies to non-Chinese companies.  

   
The sales revenue and expenses of Shenzhen Wonhe are denominated in RMB. The Chinese government strictly regulates conversion of RMB 
into foreign currencies.  Currently, Shenzhen Wonhe and Shengshihe Consulting may purchase foreign currencies for settlement of current 
account transactions, including payments of dividends, without the approval of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange (“SAFE”), by 
complying with certain procedural requirements. Pursuant to applicable Chinese laws and regulations, foreign invested enterprises incorporated 
in China, such as Shengshihe Consulting, are required to apply for “Foreign Exchange Registration Certificates.” Currently, conversion within 
the scope of the “current account” (e.g. remittance of foreign currencies for payment of dividends, trade and service-related foreign exchange 
transactions, etc.) can be effected without requiring the approval of SAFE, but must be effected through authorized Chinese banks in accordance 
with regulatory procedures. However, conversion of currency in the “capital account” (e.g. for capital items such as direct investments, loans, 
securities, etc.) still requires the approval of SAFE. Compliance with those procedural requirements can result in delays in obtaining foreign 
exchange, which could interfere with offshore activities by the Company, such as acquisitions, offshore investments, or the payment of 
dividends to the Company’s shareholders.  Because of the effort involved in obtaining foreign currencies in exchange for RMB, the Company 
intends to pay most of the operating expenses of its U.S. parent from dollars loaned to the Company by related parties.   

   
Under PRC regulations, the Company’s operating subsidiary, Shenzhen Wonhe, may pay dividends only out of its accumulated profits, if any, 
determined in accordance with the accounting standards and regulations prevailing in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”). The following table shows the 
difference between the accumulated profits reported by Shengshihe Consulting (the “WFOE”) and by Shenzhen Wonhe in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP and their accumulated profits determined in accordance with PRC GAAP.  

   

   

    

   

  

Items   PRC GAAP     US GAAP   
Accumulated profit) as of January 1, 2014 – Shenzhen Wonhe   $ 19,542,517     $ 19,542,517   
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2014 – Shenzhen Wonhe     1,741,606       1,741,606   
Accumulated profit as of December 31, 2014 – Shenzhen Wonhe     21,284,123       21,284,123   
Appropriation of statutory reserves - Shenzhen Wonhe*     2,125,243       -  
Accumulated profit available for dividend as of December 31, 2014 – Shenzhen Wonhe     19,158,880       21,284,123   
Accumulated profit as of December 31, 2014 – WFOE     146,602       146,602   
Appropriation of statutory reserves-WOFE     14,795           
Noncontrolling interest - Shenzhen Wonhe**     (957,994 )     (1,064,206 ) 
Accumulated profit as of December 31, 2014 - consolidated   $ 18,362,283     $ 20,366,519   

* Appropriation of statutory reserves is calculated as 10% of Shenzhen Wonhe’s accumulated profit. 

** Noncontrolling interest is calculated as 5% of Shenzhen Wonhe’s accumulated profit available for dividend. 
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In addition, Shenzhen Wonhe is required to set aside at least 10% of its accumulated profits each year, if any, to fund the statutory general 
reserve until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital. The amount in excess of 10% of accumulated profits that may be 
contributed to the statutory general reserve is at Shenzhen Wonhe’s discretion. The statutory general reserve is not distributable in the form of 
cash dividends to the Company and can be used to make up cumulative prior year losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital by the 
issue of new shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings, or by increasing the par value of the shares currently held by 
them, provided that the reserve balance after such use is not less than 25% of the registered capital.  As of December 31, 2014, an aggregate 
amount of $2,125,243 has been appropriated from retained earnings and set aside for the statutory reserve by Shenzhen Wonhe. As of December 
31, 2014, $1,622,257 will be appropriated from our future profits and set aside for the statutory reserve.  

   
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates  
   
In preparing our financial statements we are required to formulate working policies regarding valuation of our assets and liabilities and to 
develop estimates of those values.  In our preparation of the financial statements for the year December 31, 2014, there was one estimate made 
which was (a) subject to a high degree of uncertainty and (b) material to our results.  This was the determination reflected in Note 2 to the 
financial statements to consolidate the balance sheet and historical financials of our variable interest entity, Shenzhen Wonhe.  
   
Through the VIE agreements, our subsidiary, Shengshihe Consulting, is deemed the primary beneficiary of Shenzhen Wonhe. Shenzhen Wonhe 
has no assets that are collateral for or restricted solely to settle its own obligations. The creditors of Shenzhen Wonhe do not have recourse to the 
Company’s general credit. Shenzhen Wonhe’s actual stockholders do not hold any kick-out rights that will affect the consolidation 
determination.  Accordingly, the financials of Shenzhen Wonhe have been included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.  
   
There is a degree of uncertainty as to whether the VIE agreements would be enforceable within the Chinese legal system if, for any reason, we 
found it necessary to seek legal enforcement.  To date, there has been very limited judicial comment on such agreements, and nothing that would 
serve as binding precedent if the enforceability of our VIE agreements were to be adjudicated.  We believe that, if adjudicated, each of the four 
VIE agreements would be found enforceable by the Chinese legal system.  Our bases for this conclusion are:  

   

   

   

   

   

  

  ● The Exclusive Technical Service and Business Consulting Agreement provides an exchange of money for services that is a fair and 
reasonable exchange and does not violate any principal of Chinese law. 

  ● The Call Option Agreement is, essentially, a stand-still agreement under which the parties agree to take no action that would prejudice 
the other pending an acquisition of Shenzhen Wonhe by Shengshihe Consulting on terms that comply with Chinese law.  A standstill 
agreement, in contemplation of a subsequent transfer is commonly enforced in China, where the transfer process can be lengthy. 

  ● The Proxy Agreement conforms to Chinese corporate law that permits equity holders to appoint proxies to exercise their voting rights. 

  ● The Share Pledge Agreement conforms to Chinese law that permits a pledge of equity to secure obligations. 
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The most likely challenge to the VIE agreements would arise under the New M&A Rules, which are designed to regulate foreign acquisitions of 
Chinese entities.  Our analysis of the New M&A Rules, however, indicates that the New M&A Rules do not invalidate our VIE 
Agreements.  The New M&A Rules require offshore “special purpose vehicles,” that are (1) formed for the purpose of overseas listing of the 
equity interests of Chinese companies via acquisition and (2) are controlled directly or indirectly by Chinese companies and/or Chinese 
individuals, to obtain the approval of the CSRC prior to the listing and trading of their securities on overseas stock exchanges. Based on our 
review of the New M&A Rules, we believe that this provision does not apply to our Company.  We reached that conclusion by observing that:  

   

   

   

   
We believe, therefore, that under prevailing laws and policies our VIE Agreements are enforceable in Chinese courts.  Consideration must be 
given, however, to the possibility that the Chinese government will express a policy adverse to such arrangements, which would be likely to 
affect future adjudication of the enforceability of entrusted-management-type arrangements.  Moreover, as there are no judicial decisions known 
to us regarding the enforceability of VIE agreements, it is possible that our analysis of their enforceability may not prevail in a Chinese court. 
There is a risk, therefore that if it occurred that the counterparties to the VIE agreements failed to abide by the VIE agreements, we would be 
unable to secure effective relief in the Chinese legal system.  In that eventuality, we would be required to de-consolidate Shenzhen Wonhe from 
the Company’s financial statements, and the Company would report no revenue nor earnings and only nominal assets.  
   
Impact of Accounting Pronouncements  

   
There were no recent accounting pronouncements that have or will have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of 
operations.  

   
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  

   
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition 
or results of operations.  
   

  

  i. Shengshihe Consulting was incorporated by a foreign investor and therefore has no Chinese shareholders; 

  ii. the share exchange between World Win and the Company, Wonhe High-Tech International Inc., is between two offshore companies and 
is not deemed as a transaction to acquire equity or assets of a “Chinese domestic company”  as defined under the New M&A Rules; and 

  iii. no provision in the New M&A Rules clearly classifies the contractual arrangements between Shengshihe Consulting and Shenzhen 
Wonhe as a type of transaction falling within the New M&A Rules. 
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Not Applicable.  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

   
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders  
Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc.  

   
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, 
and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2014. These consolidated financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audits.  
   
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. 
Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

   
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position 
of Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of their operations and 
their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  
    
/s/ Wei, Wei & Co., LLP  
Flushing, NY  
March 30, 2015  
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See report of independent registered public accounting firm and notes to the consolidated financial statements.  

  

WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(IN U.S. $) 

    December 31,     December 31,   
ASSETS   2014     2013   

            
Current assets:             

Cash   $ 34,447,100     $ 35,146,245   
Account receivable     3,267,810       -  
Inventory     -      165,407   
Prepaid expenses     -      65,616   

                  
Total current assets     37,714,910       35,377,268   

                  
Fixed assets     486,516       489,810   
Less: accumulated depreciation     (289,266 )     (209,301 ) 
                  

Fixed assets, net     197,250       280,509   
                  
Other assets:                 

Intangible assets, net     8,667       17,451   
Other assets – principally security deposits     14,223       27,343   
Prepaid income taxes     2,341,300       2,635,124   

                  
Total other assets     2,364,190       2,679,918   

                  
TOTAL ASSETS   $ 40,276,350     $ 38,337,695   
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
(IN U.S. $)  

   

   
See report of independent registered public accounting firm and notes to the consolidated financial statements.  
   

  

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

December 31, 
 

2014     

December 31, 
 

2013   
              
Current liabilities:             

Accounts payable   $ -    $ 14,717   
Payroll payable     22,687       21,628   
Taxes payable     172,248       33,719   
Loan from stockholder     241,561       143,222   
Accrued expenses and other payables     154,261       174,483   

                  
Total current liabilities     590,757       387,769   

                  
Commitments and Contingencies                 
                  
Stockholders’  equity:                 

Preferred stock: $0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding     -      -  
Common stock: $0.001 par value; 90,000,000 shares authorized; 38,380,130 shares issued and outstanding 

at December 31, 2014 and 2013     38,380       38,380   
Additional paid-in capital     17,011,131       17,011,131   
Retained earnings     18,332,743       16,634,433   
Statutory reserve fund     2,033,776       1,835,144   
Other comprehensive income     787,787       1,036,323   

                  
Stockholders’  equity before noncontrolling interests     38,203,817       36,555,411   
Noncontrolling interests     1,481,776       1,394,515   
                  

Total stockholders’  equity     39,685,593       37,949,926   
                  
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’  EQUITY   $ 40,276,350     $ 38,337,695   
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME  
(IN U.S. $)  

   

   
See report of independent registered public accounting firm and notes to the consolidated financial statements.  
   

  

    
For the Year Ended  

December 31,   
    2014     2013   

              
Sales   $ 6,195,313     $ 25,474,097   
Cost of sales     (3,257,289 )     (13,218,664 ) 
                  
Gross profit     2,938,024       12,255,433   
                  
Operating expenses:                 

Research and development     92,956       156,172   
Selling and marketing     177,036       415,933   
General and administrative     489,714       794,592   

                  
Total operating expenses     759,706       1,366,697   

                  
Income from operations     2,178,318       10,888,736 
                  
Interest income     111,353       87,840   
                  
Income before provision for (benefit from) income taxes     2,289,671       10,976,576 
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes     295,973       (2,072,575 ) 
                  
Net income     1,993,698       13,049,151   
Noncontrolling interests     (96,756 )     (649,632 ) 
                  
Net income attributable to common stockholders   $ 1,896,942       12,399,519   
                  
Earnings per common share, basic and diluted   $ 0.05     $ 0.37   
                  
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic and diluted     38,380,130       33,553,463   
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME  
(IN U.S. $)  

   

   
See report of independent registered public accounting firm and notes to the consolidated financial statements.  
   

  

    
For the Year Ended  

December 31,   
    2014     2013   

              
Comprehensive income:             

Net income   $ 1,993,698     $ 13,049,151 
Foreign currency translation adjustment     (258,031 )     695,960   

                  
Comprehensive income:     1,735,667       13,745,111 

                
Comprehensive (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests     (87,261 )     (682,331 ) 

                  
Comprehensive income attributable to common stockholders   $ 1,648,406     $ 13,062,780   
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S.$)  
   

   
See report of independent registered public accounting firm and notes to the consolidated financial statements.  
   

  

    
Common  

Stock     

Additional  
Paid-in  
Capital     

Retained  
Earnings     

Statutory  
Reserve  

Fund     
Noncontrolling 

Interests     

Other  
Comprehensive 

 
Income     Total   

Balance, December 31, 2012   $ 23,900     $ 7,113,611     $ 5,469,214   $ 600,844     $ 712,184     $ 373,062     $ 14,292,815   
Issuance of common stock     14,480       9,897,520         -     -      -      -      9,912,000   
Net income     -      -      12,399,519     -      649,632       -      13,049,151 
Appropriation of statutory reserves     -      -      (1,234,300 )     1,234,300       -              -  
Other comprehensive income     -      -      -      -      32,699       663,261       695,960   
                                                          
Balance, December 31, 2013     38,380       17,011,131       16,634,433   1,835,144       1,394,515       1,036,323       37,949,926   
Net income     -      -   1,896,942       -      96,756       -   1,993,698   
Appropriation of statutory reserves     -      -      (198,632 )     198,632       -      -      -  
Other comprehensive (loss)     -      -      -      -      (9,495 )     (248,536 )     (258,031 ) 
                                                          
Balance, December 31, 2014   $ 38,380     $ 17,011,131     $ 18,332,743     $ 2,033,776     $ 1,481,776     $ 787,787     $ 39,685,593   
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
    

   
See report of independent registered public accounting firm and notes to the consolidated financial statements.  
   

  

    
For the Year Ended  

December 31,   
    2014     2013   
Cash flows from operating activities:             

Net income   $ 1,993,698     $ 13,049,151   
Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:                 

Depreciation and amortization     90,150       89,430   
Inventory obsolescence     -      180,079   

Change in operating assets and liabilities:                 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable     (3,254,690 )     4,060,141   
Decrease (increase) in inventory     165,407       (82,276 ) 
Decrease in advances to suppliers     -      5,282,712   
Decrease in prepaid expenses     65,616       7,195   
Decrease (increase) in prepaid income taxes     293,824       (2,635,124 ) 
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable     (14,717 )     476   
Increase (decrease) in payroll payable     1,059       (14,473 ) 
Increase (decrease) in taxes payable     138,529       (760,004 ) 
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other payable     (20,222 )     47,311   

                  
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities     (541,346 )     19,224,618   

                  
Cash flows from financing activities:                 

Stockholder loans     98,000       105,000   
Proceeds from issuance of common stock     -      9,912,000   

                  
Net cash provided by financing activities     98,000       10,017,000   

                  
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash     (255,799 )     688,889   
                  
Net change in cash     (699,145 )     29,930,507   
Cash, beginning     35,146,245       5,215,738   
                  
Cash, ending   $ 34,447,100     $ 35,146,245   

                  
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:                 
                  

Cash paid for income taxes   $ -    $ 1,170,964   

                  
Cash paid for interest   $ -    $ -  
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. (the “Company” or “Wonhe High-Tech”) was incorporated in the State of Nevada on August 13, 
2007. The Company changed its name from Baby Fox International, Inc. to Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. on April 20, 2012. On 
June 27, 2012, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of World Win International Holding Ltd. or “World Win” in 
exchange for 19,128,130 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Share Exchange”).  
   
As a result of the acquisition, the Company’s consolidated subsidiaries include World Win, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, 
which is incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Island (“BVI”), Kuayu International Holdings Group Limited (Hong Kong), 
or “Kuayu,” a wholly-owned subsidiary of World Win which is incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong, Shengshihe Management 
Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., or “Shengshihe Consulting,” a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kuayu which is incorporated under the 
laws of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The Company also consolidates the financial condition and results of operations of 
Shenzhen Wonhe Technology Co., Ltd., or “Shenzhen Wonhe,” a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of the PRC 
which is effectively and substantially controlled by Shengshihe Consulting through a series of captive agreements. Shenzhen Wonhe is 
considered a variable interest entity (“VIE”) of Shengshihe Consulting.  
   
Shenzhen Wonhe is a Chinese entity established on November 16, 2010 with registered capital of $7,495,000. It specializes in the 
research and development, outsourced-manufacturing and trade of hi-tech products based on x86 (instruction set architecture based on 
Intel 8086 CPU) and ARM (32-bit reduced instruction set architecture). Current products still under research and development include a 
Smart Media Box (SMB), Home Smart Server (HSS), Mini PC (MPC), All in One PC (AIO-PC), Business PAD (B-PAD), and Portable 
PAD (P-PAD). The Company is located in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, China.  
   
On May 30, 2012, Shenzhen Wonhe entered into (i) an Exclusive Technical Service and Business Consulting Agreement, (ii) a Proxy 
Agreement, (iii) Share Pledge Agreement, and (iv) Call Option Agreement with Shengshihe Consulting. The foregoing agreements are 
collectively referred to as the “VIE Agreements.”  

   

  

1. ORGANIZATION 
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Exclusive Technical Service and Business Consulting Agreement: Pursuant to the Exclusive Technical Service and Business Consulting 
Agreement, Shengshihe Consulting provides technical support, consulting, training, marketing and business consulting services to 
Shenzhen Wonhe as related to its business activities. In consideration for such services, Shenzhen Wonhe has agreed to pay as an 
annual service fee to Shengshihe Consulting an amount equal to 95% of Shenzhen Wonhe’s annual net income with an additional 
payment of approximately $8,135 (RMB 50,000) each month. The agreement has an unlimited term and can only be terminated by 
mutual agreement of the parties.  
   
Proxy Agreement: Pursuant to the Proxy Agreement, the stockholders of Shenzhen Wonhe agreed to irrevocably entrust Shengshihe 
Consulting to designate a qualified person, acceptable under PRC law and foreign investment policies, to vote all of the equity interests 
in Shenzhen Wonhe held by each of its stockholders. The Agreement has an unlimited term and only can be terminated by mutual 
agreement of the parties.  
   
Call Option Agreement: Pursuant to the Call Option Agreement, Shengshihe Consulting has an exclusive option to purchase, or to 
designate a purchaser for, to the extent permitted by PRC law and foreign investment policies, part or all of the equity interests in 
Shenzhen Wonhe held by each of its stockholders. To the extent permitted by PRC laws, the purchase price for the entire equity interest 
is approximately $0.16 (RMB1.00) or the minimum amount required by PRC law or government practice. This Agreement remains 
effective until all the equity interests under the Agreement have been transferred to Shengshihe Consulting or its designee.  
   
Share Pledge Agreement: Pursuant to the Share Pledge Agreement, the stockholders of Shenzhen Wonhe pledged their shares to 
Shengshihe Consulting to secure the obligations of Shenzhen Wonhe under the Exclusive Technical Service and Business Consulting 
Agreement. In addition, the stockholders of Shenzhen Wonhe agreed not to transfer, sell, pledge, dispose of or create any encumbrance 
on their interests in Shenzhen Wonhe that would affect Shengshihe Consulting’s interests. This Agreement remains effective until the 
obligations under the Exclusive Technical Service and Business Consulting Agreement, Call Option Agreement and Proxy Agreement 
have been fulfilled or terminated.  

   

  

1. ORGANIZATION (continued) 
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
After the Share Exchange, the Company’s current organization structure is as follows:  
   

    
   

   
Basis of Accounting and Presentation  
   
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. The consolidated financial 
statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 include Wonhe High-Tech, World Win, Kuayu, Shengshihe 
Consulting and its VIE, Shenzhen Wonhe. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation.  
   
All consolidated financial statements and notes to the consolidated financial statements are presented in United States dollars (“US 
Dollar” or “US$” or “$”).  

   

  

1. ORGANIZATION (continued) 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Variable Interest Entity  
   
Pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 810, “Consolidation” (“ASC 
810”), the Company is required to include in its consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of its variable interest 
entities (“VIEs”). ASC 810 requires a VIE to be consolidated by a reporting entity if that reporting entity is subject to a majority of the 
risk of loss for the VIE or is entitled to receive a majority of the VIE’s residual returns. VIEs are those entities in which a reporting 
entity, through contractual arrangements, bears the risk of, and enjoys the rewards normally associated with ownership of the entity, and 
therefore the reporting entity is the primary beneficiary of the entity.  
   
Under ASC 810, a reporting entity has a controlling financial interest in a VIE, and must consolidate that VIE, if the reporting entity has 
both of the following characteristics: (a) the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly affect the VIE’s economic 
performance; and (b) the obligation to absorb losses, or the right to receive benefits, that could potentially be significant to the VIE. The 
reporting entity’s determination of whether it has this power is not affected by the existence of kick-out rights or participating rights, 
unless a single enterprise, including its related parties and de facto agents, have the unilateral ability to exercise those rights. Shenzhen 
Wonhe’s actual stockholders do not hold any kick-out rights that affect the consolidation determination.  
   
Through the VIE agreements disclosed in Note 1, the Company is deemed the primary beneficiary of Shenzhen Wonhe and, 
accordingly, the results of operations of Shenzhen Wonhe have been included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
Shenzhen Wonhe has no assets that are collateral for or restricted solely to settle its obligations. The creditors of Shenzhen Wonhe do 
not have recourse to the general credit of Shengshihe Consulting or its parent entities.  
   
Principally almost of the assets recorded on the balance sheets of the Company are owned by Shenzhen Wonhe. In addition, all of the 
unrecognized revenue-producing assets of the Company, such as intellectual property and the assembled workforce, are owned by 
Shenzhen Wonhe. Likewise, all of the recognized assets of Shenzhen Wonhe are recorded on the Company’s balance sheets, and all of 
the unrecognized assets of Shenzhen Wonhe are utilized for the benefit of the Company.  
   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Variable Interest Entity (continued)  
   
The following are financial statement amounts and balances of Shenzhen Wonhe that have been included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements.  

   

   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 

  ASSETS   

December 31, 
 

2014     

December 31, 
 

2013   
                
  Current assets:             
  Cash   $ 34,228,266     $ 35,007,670   
  Account receivable     3,267,810       -  
  Inventory     -      165,407   
  Prepaid expenses     -      65,616   
                    
  Total current assets     37,496,076       35,238,693   
                    
  Fixed assets, net     197,250       280,509   
                    
  Other assets:                 
  Intangible assets     8,667       17,451   
  Other assets – principally security deposits     14,223       27,343   
  Prepaid income taxes     2,341,300       2,635,124   
                    
  Total other assets     2,364,190       2,679,918   
                    

  TOTAL ASSETS   $ 40,057,516     $ 38,199,120   
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Variable Interest Entity (continued)  

   

   

   

   

   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 

  LIABILITIES   

December 31, 
 

2014     

December 31, 
 

2013   
                
  Current liabilities:             
                
  Payable to WFOE (1)   $ 21,029,629     $ 19,191,267   
  Due to Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. (2)     9,882,600       9,949,498   
  Accounts payable     -      14,717   
  Payroll payable     21,192       20,123   
  Taxes payable     116,629       561   
  Accrued expenses and other payables     401,584       178,740   
                    
  Total current liabilities     31,451,634       29,354,906   
                    

  TOTAL LIABILITIES   $ 31,451,634     $ 29,354,906   

  (1) Payable to WFOE represents amounts due to Shengshihe Consulting under the Exclusive Technical Service and Business 
Consulting Agreement for consulting services provided to Shenzhen Wonhe in exchange for 95% of Shenzhen Wonhe’s net 
income and monthly payments of RMB 50,000 (approximately US$8,135). The monthly payments have been paid in full as of 
December 31, 2014. 

      
  (2) Due to Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. represents the cash received by Shenzhen Wonhe for the sale of 14,480,000 

common shares issued by Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. on May 2, 2013 at $0.68 each (total approximately 
US$9,850,000). 

      
For the Year Ended  

December 31,   
      2014     2013   
                
  Sales   $ 6,195,313     $ 25,474,097   

  Net income (3)   $ 1,935,118     $ 13,136,390   

  (3) Under the Exclusive Technical Service and Business Consulting Agreement, 95% of the net income is to be remitted to the 
WFOE. 
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Variable Interest Entity (continued)  
   

   
The Company believes that Shengshihe Consulting’s contractual agreements with Shenzhen Wonhe are in compliance with PRC law 
and are legally enforceable. The stockholders of Shenzhen Wonhe are also the senior management of the Company and therefore the 
Company believes that they have no current interest in seeking to act contrary to the contractual arrangements. However, Shenzhen 
Wonhe and its stockholders may fail to take certain actions required for the Company’s business or to follow the Company’s 
instructions despite their contractual obligations to do so. Furthermore, if Shenzhen Wonhe or its stockholders do not act in the best 
interests of the Company under the contractual arrangements and any dispute relating to these contractual arrangements remains 
unresolved, the Company will have to enforce its rights under these contractual arrangements through the operations of PRC law and 
courts and therefore will be subject to uncertainties in the PRC legal system. All of these contractual arrangements are governed by 
PRC law and provide for the resolution of disputes through arbitration in the PRC. Accordingly, these contracts would be interpreted in 
accordance with PRC law and any disputes would be resolved in accordance with PRC legal procedures. As a result, uncertainties in the 
PRC legal system could limit the Company’s ability to enforce these contractual arrangements, which may make it difficult to exert 
effective control over Shenzhen Wonhe, and its ability to conduct business may be adversely affected.  

   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 

      
For the Years Ended  

Dec 31, 
      2014   2013 
  Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities   $ (591,815 )   $ 29,201,250   
  Net cash provided by financing activities     -      -  
  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash     (187,589 )     646,503   

  Net change in cash   $ (779,404 )   $ 29,847,753   
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Use of Estimates  

   
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

   
Foreign Currency Translation  

   
Almost all of the Company’s assets are located in the PRC. The functional currency for the majority of the operations is the Renminbi 
(“RMB”). For Kuayu, the functional currency for the majority of its operations is the Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”). The Company uses 
the US Dollar for financial reporting purposes. The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company have been translated into 
US dollars in accordance with FASB ASC 830, “Foreign Currency Matters.”  

   
All asset and liability accounts have been translated using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Equity accounts have 
been translated at their historical exchange rates when the capital transactions occurred. The consolidated statements of income and 
other comprehensive income amounts have been translated using the average exchange rate for the periods presented. Adjustments 
resulting from the translation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements are recorded as other comprehensive income (loss).  
   
The exchange rates used to translate amounts in RMB into US dollars for the purposes of preparing the consolidated financial 
statements are as follows:  

   

   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 

      

December 31, 
 

2014   

December 31, 
 

2013 

  Balance sheet items, except for stockholders’  equity, as of period end     0.1625       0.1636   

  Amounts included in the statements of income, changes in stockholders’  equity and cash flows     0.1627       0.1614   
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Foreign Currency Translation (continued)  
   

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, foreign currency translation adjustments of $(258,031) and $695,960, respectively, 
have been reported as other comprehensive (loss) income. Other comprehensive (loss) income of the Company consists entirely of 
foreign currency translation adjustments. Pursuant to ASC 740-30-25-17, “ Exceptions to Comprehensive Recognition of Deferred 
Income Taxes,” the Company does not recognize deferred U.S. taxes related to the undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries and, 
accordingly, recognizes no income tax expense or benefit from foreign currency translation adjustments.  
   

Although government regulations now allow convertibility of the RMB for current account transactions, significant restrictions still 
remain. Hence, such translations should not be construed as representations that the RMB could be converted into US dollars at that rate 
or any other rate.  
   

The value of the RMB against the US dollar and other currencies may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things, changes in the 
PRC’s political and economic conditions. Any significant revaluation of the RMB may materially affect the Company’s financial 
condition in terms of US dollar reporting.  
   

Revenue and Cost Recognition  
   

The Company receives revenues from the sale of electronic products. The Company’s revenue recognition policies are in compliance 
with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) 104 (codified in FASB ASC Topic 605). Sales revenue is recognized when the products 
are delivered and when customer acceptance occurs, the price is fixed or determinable, no other significant obligations of the Company 
exist and collectability is reasonably assured. Finished goods are delivered from outsourced manufacturers to the Company. Revenue is 
recognized when the title to the products has been passed to the customer, which is the date the products are picked up by the customer 
at the Company’s location or delivered to the designated locations by Company employees and accepted by the customer and the 
previously discussed requirements are met. The customer’s acceptance occurs upon inspection at the time of pickup or delivery by 
signing an acceptance form.  
   

The Company does not provide its customers with the right of return. A 36-month warranty is offered to customers for exchange or 
repair of defective products, the cost of which is substantially covered by the outsourced manufacturers’ warranty policies as specified 
in the contract between the Company and its outsourced manufacturers. As a result, the Company does not recognize a warranty 
liability. Payments received before all of the relevant criteria for revenue recognition are met are recorded as advances from customers.  
   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Revenue and Cost Recognition (continued)  
   

The Company follows the guidance set forth by FASB ASC 605-45-45 to assess whether the Company acts as the principal or agent in 
the transaction. The determination involves judgment and is based on an evaluation of whether the Company has the substantial risks 
and rewards of ownership under the terms of the arrangement. Based on the assessment, the Company determined it acts as a principal 
in the transaction and reports revenues on the gross basis.  
   

FASB ASC 605-45-45 sets forth eight criteria that support reporting recognition of gross revenue (i.e. principal sales) and three that 
support reporting net revenue (i.e. agent sales). As applied to the relationship between the Company and its manufacturers, seven of the 
criteria that support reporting gross revenue are satisfied:  
   

   
The only criterion supporting recognition of gross revenue that is not satisfied by the relationship between the Company and its 
manufacturers is: the entity changes the product or performs part of the service. Moreover, none of the three criteria supporting 
recognition of net revenue is present in the Company’s sales transactions. For this reason, the Company records gross revenue with 
respect to sales by Shenzhen Wonhe.  
   

During the last quarter of 2014, the Company started to sell an updated product, HMC720, which was developed by the Company but 
outsourced to others to produce.  
   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 

● Shenzhen Wonhe has general inventory risk, as it takes title to a product before that product is ordered by or delivered to a 
customer. 

● Shenzhen Wonhe establishes its own pricing for its products. 
● Shenzhen Wonhe has discretion in supplier selection. 
● Shenzhen Wonhe designed the Home Media Center Model 720 (the “HMC720”) and is responsible for all of its 

specifications. 
● Shenzhen Wonhe has physical inventory loss risk until the product is delivered to the customer. 
● Shenzhen Wonhe has full credit risk for amounts billed to its customers. 
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Fair Value of Financial Instruments  
   

FASB ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurement,” defines fair value as the price that would be received upon sale of an asset or paid upon 
transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and in the principal or most 
advantageous market for that asset or liability. The fair value should be calculated based on assumptions that market participants would 
use in pricing the asset or liability, not on assumptions specific to the entity.  
   

Advertising Costs  
   

Advertising costs are paid to an advertising agency for market analysis and strategic planning and are charged to operations when 
incurred. Advertising costs were $130,160 and $357,106 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.  
   

Research and Development Costs  
   

The Company develops software to be marketed as part of its products, and that is not for internal use. The software is essential to the 
functionality of the Company’s tangible products. Therefore, the Company accounts for research and development costs incurred in 
development of its software in accordance with FASB ASC 985-20.  
   

Research and development costs are charged to operations when incurred. Development costs of computer software to be sold, leased, 
or otherwise marketed are subject to capitalization beginning when a product’s technological feasibility has been established and ending 
when a product is available for general release to customers. In most instances, the Company’s products are released soon after 
technological feasibility has been established. Therefore, costs incurred subsequent to achievement of technological feasibility are 
usually not significant, and generally most software development costs have been expensed as incurred. Research and development 
costs were $92,956 and $156,172 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.  

   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Cash and Cash Equivalents  
   

The Company considers all demand and time deposits and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less 
to be cash equivalents.  
   

Accounts Receivable  
   

Accounts receivable are stated at cost, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Receivables outstanding longer than the payment 
terms are considered past due. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the 
failure of customers to make required payments, when necessary. The Company reviews the accounts receivable on a periodic basis and 
makes allowances where there is doubt as to the collectability of the outstanding balance. In evaluating the collectability of an 
individual receivable balance, the Company considers many factors, including the age of the balance, the customer’s payment history, 
its current credit-worthiness and current economic trends. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company did not write 
off any accounts receivable as bad debts.  
   

Inventory  
   

Inventory, comprised principally of computer components, is valued at the lower of cost or market value. The value of inventory is 
determined using the first-in, first-out method.  
   

The Company estimates an inventory allowance for estimated unmarketable inventories. Inventory amounts are reported net of such 
allowances. The allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventory was $0 and $182,534 for computer components as of December 31, 
2014 and 2013 respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2014, the company disposed of its unused raw material inventory.  
   

Fixed Assets and Depreciation  
   
Fixed assets are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the price paid to acquire the asset, and any expenditure 
that substantially increases the asset’s value or extends the useful life of an existing asset. Leasehold improvements are amortized over 
the lesser of the remaining term of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements. Depreciation is computed using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Major repairs and betterments that significantly extend original useful 
lives or improve productivity are capitalized and depreciated over the periods benefited. Maintenance and repairs are generally 
expensed as incurred.  

   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Fixed Assets and Depreciation (continued)  

   
The estimated useful lives for fixed asset categories are as follows:  

   

   
Impairment of Long-lived Assets  

   
The Company applies FASB ASC 360, “Property, Plant and Equipment,” which addresses the financial accounting and reporting for 
the recognition and measurement of impairment losses for long-lived assets. In accordance with ASC 360, long-lived assets are 
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be 
recoverable. The Company may recognize the impairment of long-lived assets in the event the net book value of such assets exceeds the 
future undiscounted cash flows attributable to those assets. No impairment of long-lived assets was recognized for the periods 
presented.  

   
Statutory Reserve Fund  

   
Pursuant to corporate law of the PRC, Shengshihe Consulting and the VIE are required to transfer 10% of their net income, as 
determined under PRC accounting rules and regulations, to a statutory reserve fund until such reserve balance reaches 50% of their 
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund is non-distributable other than during liquidation and can be used to fund prior years’
losses, if any, and may be utilized for business expansion or used to increase registered capital, provided that the remaining reserve 
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the registered capital. As of December 31, 2014, $2,033,776 had been transferred from 
retained earnings to the statutory reserve fund. The remaining balance necessary to fully fund the statutory reserve is approximately 
$1,715,000 as of December 31, 2014.  

   
Income Taxes  

   
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740, “Income Taxes” (“ASC 740”), which requires the 
recognition of deferred income taxes for differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial statement and income tax 
purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax consequences for those differences, which will either be taxable or 
deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred taxes are also recognized for operating losses that are 
available to offset future taxable income. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the 
amount expected to be realized.  
   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 

  Office equipment   5 years 
  Motor vehicles   5 years 
  Leasehold improvements   Shorter of the remaining term of the lease or life of the improvement 
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Income Taxes (continued)  
   

ASC 740 addresses the determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in 
the financial statements. Under ASC 740, the Company may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more 
likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the 
position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position would be measured based on the largest benefit 
that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. ASC 740 also provides guidance on de-recognition of 
income tax assets and liabilities, classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, and accounting for interest and 
penalties associated with these tax positions. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company did not have any liabilities for 
unrecognized tax benefits.  
   

The income tax laws of various jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries operate are summarized as follows:  
   

United States  
   

The Company is subject to United States tax at graduated rates from 15% to 35%. No provision for income taxes in the United States 
has been made as the Company had no U.S. taxable income for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.  
   

PRC  
   

Shenzhen Wonhe and Shengshihe Consulting are subject to an Enterprise Income Tax at 25% and file their own tax returns. 
Consolidated tax returns are not permitted in China. On July 23, 2012, the National Tax Bureau, Shenzhen Nanshan Branch declared 
that Shenzhen Wonhe is qualified for the preferential tax treatment afforded by the PRC to enterprises engaged in the development of 
software or integrated circuits. As a result, starting from its first profitable year, Shenzhen Wonhe had a two-year exemption from the 
Enterprise Income Tax followed by a 50% exemption in the third year commencing January 1, 2014. The tax regulations required that 
the enterprise pay income tax until its eligibility for the exemption is determined - i.e. until the local tax bureau determines that the 
enterprise has recorded its first profitable year. Payments were made of approximately $2,600,000 (RMB 16,107,000) based upon 2012 
income while the local tax bureau reviewed the Company’s financial results. The National Tax Bureau determined that the Company 
had realized a profit in 2012. Since the Company has now been declared exempt from tax with respect to 2012, the payments that were 
made will be applied to future income taxes due. The payments have been reflected as prepaid income taxes on the balance sheet as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company offset the income tax provision of $276,446, 
leaving a balance of prepaid income taxes of $2,341,300.  
   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 
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(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Income Taxes (continued)  
   
BVI  

   
World Win is incorporated in the BVI and is governed by the income tax laws of the BVI. According to current BVI income tax law, 
the applicable income tax rate for the Company is 0%.  

   
Hong Kong  

   
Kuayu International is incorporated in Hong Kong. Pursuant to the income tax laws of Hong Kong, the Company is not subject to tax 
on non Hong Kong source income.  

   
Noncontrolling Interests  

   
The Company evaluated and determined that under the VIE agreements as disclosed in Note 1, it is deemed to be the primary 
beneficiary of Shenzhen Wonhe. The noncontrolling interest, representing 5% of the net assets in Shenzhen Wonhe not attributable, 
directly or indirectly to the Company, is measured at its carrying value in the equity section of the consolidated balance sheets.  
   

   
In January 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") ASU 2015-01 –
Income Statement – Extraordinary and Unusual Items (Subtopic 225-20). This ASU addressed the simplification of income statement 
presentation by eliminating the concept of extraordinary items. The objective of the Simplification Initiative is to identify, evaluate, and 
improve areas of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for which cost and complexity can be reduced while maintaining or 
improving the usefulness of the information provided to the users of financial statements. The amendments in this Update are effective 
for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2015. A reporting entity may apply the 
amendments prospectively. Areporting entity also may apply the amendments retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the 
financial statements. Early adoption is permitted provided that the guidance is applied from the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption. 
The Company does not expect that adoption of this ASU will have a material impact on its consolidated statements of condition, results 
of operations, or cash flows.  
   

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed) 

3. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
In August 2014, the FASB issued authoritative guidance that requires an entity’s management to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and requires 
additional disclosures if certain criteria are met. This guidance is effective for fiscal periods ending after December 15, 2016, with early 
adoption permitted. This accounting standard update is not expected to have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements.  
   
In June 2014, FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, “Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an Award Provide That a 
Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Period.” ASU 2014-12 requires a reporting entity to treat a 
performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period as a performance condition. It is 
effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2015. Early adoption is 
permitted. This accounting standard update is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements.  
   
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” which supersedes the revenue 
recognition requirements in ASC 605, “Revenue Recognition.” The core principle of this updated guidance is that an entity should 
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The new rule also requires additional disclosures about 
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments 
and changes in judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. This guidance is effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. Companies are permitted 
to adopt this new rule utilizing either a full or modified retrospective approach. Early adoption is not permitted. The Company has not 
yet determined the potential impact of this updated authoritative guidance on its consolidated financial statements.  

     

  

3. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued) 
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WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Fixed assets at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows:  
   

   
Depreciation expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $81,473 and $80,822, respectively.  
   

   
Intangible assets at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows:  

   
Software was purchased in December 2012, and is being amortized over three years, beginning in January 2013. Amortization expense 
charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $8,677 and $8,608, respectively.  

   

  

4. FIXED ASSETS 

      

December 31, 
 

2014   

December 31, 
 

 2013 
            
  Office equipment   $ 157,751     $ 158,819   
  Motor vehicles     219,419       220,905   
  Leasehold improvements     109,346       110,086   
                    
        486,516       489,810   
  Less: Accumulated depreciation     (289,266 )     (209,301 ) 
                    

  Fixed assets, net   $ 197,250     $ 280,509   

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

      

December 31, 
 

2014   

December 31, 
 

2013 
            
  Software   $ 26,000     $ 26,176   
  Less: Accumulated amortization     (17,333 )     (8,725 ) 
                    

  Intangible assets, net   $ 8,667     $ 17,451   
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(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
The Company leased its prior offices in Shenzhen from an unrelated third party at a monthly rental of $15,800 under an operating lease 
expiring on February 28, 2019. The Company terminated the lease on September 30, 2013 without incurring any penalties. On 
September 30, 2013, the Company entered into a new lease agreement with an unrelated third party at a monthly rental of $9,579 per 
month. The lease expired on August 31, 2014. On September 1, 2014, the Company renewed the lease agreement at the same rent for 
12 months.  
   
Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $115,879 and $198,732, respectively.  

   

   
From time to time, a stockholder/officer loans money to the Company, primarily to meet the non-RMB cash requirements of the parent 
and subsidiaries. The loans are non-interest bearing, and the balance due was $177,378 and $143,222 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.  
   
The loans principally represent professional and legal fees incurred in the U.S. paid by the stockholder and operating expenses for 
Wonhe High-Tech and Shengshihe Consulting since their inception. The balance is reflected as loan from stockholder.  

   

   
FASB ASC 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based upon whether the inputs to those valuation techniques reflect 
assumptions other market participants would use based upon market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs). In 
accordance with ASC 820, the following summarizes the fair value hierarchy:  

    

    

    

   

  

6. LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

  Level 1 Inputs – Unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets and liabilities in an active market that the Company has 
the ability to access. 

  Level 2 Inputs – Inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly. 

  Level 3 Inputs  – Inputs based on prices or valuation techniques that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair 
value measurements. 
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ASC 820 requires the use of observable market data, when available, in making fair value measurements. When inputs used to measure 
fair value fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the level within which the fair value measurement is categorized is based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurements. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable 
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, none of the Company’s assets and liabilities 
were required to be reported at fair value on a recurring basis. Carrying values of non-derivative financial instruments, including cash, 
receivables and various payables, approximate their fair values due to the short term nature of these financial instruments. There were 
no changes in methods or assumptions during the periods presented.  

   

   
The Company is required to file income tax returns in both the United States and the PRC. Its operations in the United States have been 
insignificant and income taxes have not been accrued. In the PRC, the Company files tax returns for Shenzhen Wonhe and Shengshihe 
Consulting.  
   
The provision for (benefit from) income taxes consisted of the following for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:  
   

  

8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 

9. INCOME TAXES 

      
For the Year Ended  

December 31, 
      2014   2013 
            
  Current   $ 295,973     $ (2,072,575 ) 
  Deferred     -      -  
                    

      $ 295,973     $ (2,072,575 ) 
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The following is a reconciliation of the statutory rate with the effective income tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 
2013.  

   

   
The following presents the aggregate dollar and per share effects of the Company’s VIE tax holidays:  

   
The Company’s PRC tax filings for the tax year ended December 31, 2013 was examined by the tax authorities in May, 2014. The 
examinations were completed and resulted in no adjustments. The Company’s PRC tax filings for the tax year ended December 31, 
2014 will be examined by the tax authorities in May, 2015.  
   
The Company did not file its U.S. federal income tax returns, including, without limitation, information returns on Internal Revenue 
Service (“IRS”) Form 5471, “Information Return of U.S. Persons with Respect to Certain Foreign Corporations” for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2012, the six months period ended December 31, 2012, a short year income tax return required to be filed as a result of 
the change in the fiscal year and the year ended December 31, 2013. Failure to furnish any income tax and information returns with 
respect to any foreign business entity required, within the time prescribed by the IRS, subjects the Company to certain civil penalties. 
Management is of the opinion that penalties, if any, that may be assessed would not be material to the consolidated financial statements. 
   

  

9. INCOME TAXES (continued) 

      
For the Year Ended  
December 31, 2014   

For the Year Ended  
December 31, 2013 

      
Tax   

Provision   
Rate of   

Tax   
Tax   

Provision   
Rate of   

Tax 
                    
  Tax at statutory rate   $ 572,418       25 %   $ 2,744,144       25 % 
  VIE tax holiday     (276,445 )     (12 )%     (4,816,719 )     (44 )% 
                                    

  Tax at effective tax rate   $ 295,973       13 %   $ (2,072,575 )     (19 )% 

      
For the Years Ended  

December 31, 
      2014   2013 
            
  Aggregate dollar effect of tax holiday   $ (276,445 )   $ (4,816,719 ) 

  Per share effect, basic and diluted     0.01       0.14   
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Because the Company did not generate any income in the United States or otherwise have any U.S. taxable income, the Company does 
not believe that it has any U.S. federal income tax liabilities with respect to any transactions that the Company or any of its subsidiaries 
may have engaged in through December 31, 2014. However, there can be no assurance that the IRS will agree with this position, and 
therefore the Company ultimately could be liable for U.S. federal income taxes, interest and penalties. The tax year ended June 30, 
2012, six-month tax period ended December 31, 2012, and the tax year ended December 31, 2013 remain open to examination by the 
IRS.  
   
All of the Company’s operations are conducted in the PRC. At December 31, 2014, the Company’s unremitted foreign earnings of its 
PRC subsidiaries totaled approximately $18.3 million and the Company held approximately $34.4 million of cash and cash equivalents 
in the PRC. These unremitted earnings are planned to be reinvested indefinitely into the operations of the Company in the PRC. While 
repatriation of cash held in the PRC may be restricted by local PRC laws, most of the Company’s foreign cash balances could be 
repatriated to the United States but, under current U.S. income tax laws, would be subject to U.S. federal income taxes less applicable 
foreign tax credits. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred U.S. income tax liability on the unremitted earnings is not 
practicable because of the complexities associated with this hypothetical calculation, and as the Company does not plan to repatriate 
any cash in the PRC to the United States during the foreseeable future, no deferred tax liability has been accrued.  
   

   
As disclosed in Note 9, the Company was delinquent in filing certain tax returns with the U.S. Internal Revenue Services. The Company 
is unable to determine the amount of penalties, if any, that may be assessed at this time. Management is of the opinion that penalties, if 
any, that may be assessed would not be material to the consolidated financial statements.  
   
The Company did not file the information reports for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, concerning its interest in foreign 
bank accounts on form TDF 90-22.1, “Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts” (“FBAR”). Not complying with the FBAR 
reporting and recordkeeping requirements will subject the Company to civil penalties up to $10,000 for each of its foreign bank 
accounts. The Company has not determined the amount of any penalties that may be assessed at this time and believes that penalties, if 
any, that may be assessed would not be material to the consolidated financial statements.  

  

9. INCOME TAXES (continued) 

10. CONTINGENCIES 
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Cash and cash equivalents  

   
Substantially all of the Company’s bank accounts are in banks located in the People’s Republic of China and are not covered by 
protection similar to that provided by the FDIC on funds held in United States banks.  

   
Major customers  

   
Two major customers accounted for approximately 23% and 22% of total sales for the year ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. The same 
two customers also accounted for approximately 33% and 30% of accounts receivable at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.  

   

   
Shenzhen Wonhe is required to make contributions to multi-employer welfare programs by government regulation sometimes identified 
as the Mainland China Contribution Plan. Specifically, the following regulations require that the Company pay a percentage of 
employee salaries into the specified plans:  
   

   
* Depending on their position in the company, employees receive either hospitalization, medical and maternity insurance or 
comprehensive medical and maternity insurance, which is a lower premium.  

   
Total contributions to employee welfare programs for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follow:  

   

   

  

11. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

12. CONTRIBUTIONS TO MULTI-EMPLOYER WELFARE PROGRAM S 

  Regulation   Plan   % of Salary 
  Shenzhen Special Economic Zone Social Retirement Insurance Regulations   Pension     13% 
  Shenzhen Work-Related Injury Insurance Regulations   Workers Comp.   0.4% 
  Guangdong Unemployment Insurance Regulations   Unemployment     2% 
  Housing Provident Fund Management Regulations   Housing     5% 
  Shenzhen Social Medical Insurance Measures   Medical     6.5% or 0.6%*   
  Guangdong Employees Maternity Insurance   Maternity     0.5% or 0.2%*   

      
For the year ended  

December 31, 
      2014   2013 
            
  Total contributions   $ 25,050     $ 26,660   
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The following condensed financial information presents the US parent only balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the 
US parent only statements of operations, and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:  

   
Condensed Balance Sheets  

   

   

  

13. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGISTRANT 

  ASSETS   

December 31, 
 

2014   

December 31, 
 

2013 
            
  Other receivable from VIE   $ 9,912,000     $ 9,912,000   
  Investment in subsidiaries and VIE     28,558,212       26,848,700   
                    
  TOTAL ASSETS   $ 38,470,212     $ 36,760,700   

                    
  LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ’  EQUITY                 
                    
  Loans from stockholder   $ 228,886     $ 129,030   
  Accrued expenses and other payables     37,509       76,259   
                    
  Total liabilities     266,395       205,289   
                    
  Stockholders’  equity:                 
  Preferred stock: $0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding     -      -  

  
Common stock: $0.001 par value; 90,000,000 shares authorized; 38,380,130 shares issued and 

outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013     38,380       38,380   
  Additional paid-in capital     17,011,131       17,011,131   
  Retained earnings     21,154,306       19,505,900   
                    
  Total stockholders’ equity     38,203,817       36,555,411   
                    

  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ’  EQUITY   $ 38,470,212     $ 36,760,700   
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Condensed Statements of Operations  

   

   
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows  

   

   

  

14. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGISTRANT (continu ed) 

      
For the Years Ended  

December 31, 
      2014   2013 
            
  Revenues         
  Share of earnings from investment in subsidiaries and VIE   $ 1,733,071     $ 13,206,530   
                    
  Operating expenses                 
  General and administrative expenses     (84,665 )     (143,750 ) 
                    

  Net income   $ 1,648,406     $ 13,062,780   

      
For the Years Ended  

December 31, 
      2014   2013 
            
  Cash flows from operating activities:         
  Net income   $ 1,648,406     $ 13,062,780   
  Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash provided by /(used in) operating activities:                 
  Share of earnings from investment in subsidiaries and VIE     (1,644,656 )     (13,206,530 ) 
  Change in operating assets and liabilities:                 
  (Increase) in other receivable     -      (9,912,000 ) 
  (Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other payables     (101,750 )     38,750   
                    

  Net cash (used in) operating activities     (98,000 )     (10,017,000 ) 

F- 31 



   
WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013  

(IN U.S. $)  
   

   
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows (continued)  

   

   
Basis of Presentation  
   
The Company records its investment in its subsidiaries and VIE under the equity method of accounting. Such investments are presented 
as “Investment in subsidiaries and VIE” on the condensed balance sheets and shares of the subsidiaries and VIE’ profits are presented 
as “Share of earnings from investment in subsidiaries and VIEs” in the condensed statements of operations.  
   
Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America have been condensed or omitted. The parent only financial information 
has been derived from the Company’s consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements.  

   

  

14. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGISTRANT (continu ed) 

      
For the Years Ended  

December 31, 
      2014   2013 
  Cash flows from financing activities:         
  Proceeds from issuance of common stock     -      9,912,000   
  Loans from stockholders     98,000       105,000   
                    
  Net cash provided by financing activities     98,000       10,017,000   
                    
  Net change in cash     -      -  
  Cash, beginning     -      -  

  Cash, ending   $ -    $ -  
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Restricted Net Assets  

   
Under PRC laws and regulations, the Company’s PRC subsidiary and VIE are restricted in their ability to transfer certain of their net 
assets outside of the PRC in the form of dividend payments, loans or advances. The restricted net assets of the Company’s PRC 
subsidiary and VIE amounted to $38,203,817 and $36,555,411 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.  

   
In addition, the Company’s operations are conducted and its revenues are generated in the PRC, all of the Company’s revenues being 
earned and currency received are denominated in RMB. RMB is subject to the foreign exchange control regulations in China, and, as a 
result, the Company may be unable to distribute any dividends outside of China due to PRC foreign exchange control regulations that 
restrict the Company’s ability to convert RMB into US Dollars.  

   
Schedule I of Article 5-04 of Regulation S-X requires the condensed financial information of the Company to be filed when the 
restricted net assets of consolidated subsidiaries exceed 25 percent of consolidated net assets as of the end of the most recently 
completed fiscal year. For purposes of this test, restricted net assets of consolidated subsidiaries shall mean that amount of the 
registrant’s proportionate share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries (after intercompany eliminations) which as of the end of the 
most recent fiscal year may not be transferred to the parent company by subsidiaries in the form of loans, advances or cash dividends 
without the consent of a third party. The condensed parent company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Rule 
12-04, Schedule I of Regulation S-X as the restricted net assets of the Company’s PRC subsidiary and VIE exceed 25% of the 
consolidated net assets of the Company.  
   

  

14. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGISTRANT (continu ed) 
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Not applicable.  

   

   
(a)             Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.  
   

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures .  Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer carried out an evaluation 
of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule13a-15(e) promulgated by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission) as of December 31, 2014. The evaluation revealed that there are material weaknesses in our disclosure controls, 
specifically:  

   

   
Based on their evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s system of disclosure 

controls and procedures was not effective as of December 31, 2014.  
   
It is our intention to increase staffing to mitigate the current lack of segregation of duties within the general administrative and financial 

functions. In an effort to remediate the material weaknesses, we plan to document our process and procedures governing our internal reporting, 
including (1) timely review of reports prior to issuance, (2) a re-evaluation of our staffing needs, and (3) analysis of unusual transactions as they 
are occurring to allow adequate time for multiple levels of review.  

   
In addition, we plan to designate individuals responsible for identifying reportable developments and to implement procedures designed 

to remediate the material weakness by focusing additional attention and resources on our internal accounting functions. However, the material 
weakness will not be considered remediated until the applicable remedial controls operate for a sufficient period of time and management has 
concluded, through testing, that these controls are operating effectively.  

   
(b)            Changes in Internal Controls.  

There was no change in internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under the Securities 
Exchange Act or 1934) identified in connection with the evaluation described in the preceding paragraph that occurred during the Company’s 
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting.  
   

  

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

● The relatively small number of employees who are responsible for accounting functions prevents us from segregating duties within our 
internal control system.   

    
● Our internal financial staff lack expertise in identifying and addressing complex accounting issued under U.S. Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles. 
    
● Our Chief Financial Officer is not familiar with the accounting and reporting requirements of a U.S. public company. 
    
● We have not developed sufficient documentation concerning our existing financial processes, risk assessment and internal controls. 
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Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as 
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. We have assessed the effectiveness of those internal controls as of 
December 31, 2013, using the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) Internal Control – Integrated 
Framework (1992) as a basis for our assessment.  

Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have 
inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial 
statement preparation and presentation.  

A material weakness in internal controls is a deficiency in internal control, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects 
the Company’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report external financial data reliably in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the 
Company’s annual or interim financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected. In the course of making 
our assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting, we identified four material weaknesses in our internal control 
over financial reporting. These material weaknesses consisted of:  

   
Management is currently implementing the remedial programs described in Section 9A(a) above. However, because of the above 

conditions, management’s assessment is that the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting were not effective as of December 31, 
2014 .  

   
None.  

   

  

(c) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting . 

● The relatively small number of employees who are responsible for accounting functions prevents us from segregating duties within our 
internal control system.   

    
● Our internal financial staff lack expertise in identifying and addressing complex accounting issued under U.S. Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles. 
    
● Our Chief Financial Officer is not familiar with the accounting and reporting requirements of a U.S. public company. 
    
● We have not developed sufficient documentation concerning our existing financial processes, risk assessment and internal controls. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 
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PART III  

   

   
The officers and directors of the Company are:  

   

   
The following sets forth biographical information regarding the Company’s directors.  
   
Mr. Qing Tong has served as our Chairman since June 2012 and the Chairman of Shenzhen Wonhe since September 2010.  From 2000 

until 2010, Mr. Tong served as the Chairman of Wonhe International Venture Capital Investment Hong Kong Co., Ltd., a company specializing 
in investing.  From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Tong served as the Manager of Guangdong Xingbao Group, a manufacturer of micro-electronics and 
computer products.   From 1996 to 1998, Mr. Tong served as the Marketing Director of Zhongshan Cordyceps Sinensis Product Co., Ltd., which 
manufactured and marketed health-care products made from cordyceps sinensis.  Mr. Tong graduated from Hubei University with a 
concentration in Chinese language and literature.   Mr. Tong was selected as a Director because of his extensive management experience and 
knowledge of the business of the Company. Qing Tong is the brother of Nanfang Tong, our Chief Executive Officer.  
   

Mr. Nanfang Tong served as our President, Secretary and Treasurer from March 2012 until June 2012 and has served as our Chief 
Executive Officer and a Director since June 2012. From 2010 to the present, Mr. Tong has served as Chief Executive Officer at Shenzhen 
Wonhe. From 2009 to 2010, Mr. Tong served as Executive Deputy General Manager at Zhongshan Yinli Automatic System Devices Co., 
Ltd.  From 2004 to 2009, Mr. Tong served as General Manager at Zhongshan Yinli Automatic System Devices Co., Ltd, a manufacturer of 
security equipment. From 2002 to 2004, Mr. Tong was employed as Vice General Manager by Zhongshan Yinli Automatic System Devices Co., 
Ltd. In 1993, Mr. Tong graduated from the Huazhong University of Science and Technology with a Bachelor’s Degree in Applied Electronics. 
Mr. Tong was selected as a director because of his extensive management experience, his background in the electronics industry and his 
knowledge of the business of the Company. Nanfang Tong is the brother of Qing Tong, our Chairman of the Board.  
   

Mr. Jingwu Li has served as a Director of the Company since June 2012. From November 2010 to the present, Mr. Li has served as a 
Director at Shenzhen Wonhe. From 2006 until 2010, Mr. Li served as a director and general manager of Hong Kong Jiaheng International Co., 
Ltd., an international company specializing in international trade and e-commerce.  From 2005 until 2006, Mr. Li served as a general manager of 
Shanghai Jinshu Trading Co., Ltd., a steel products processing and trading company.   From 2002 until 2005, Mr. Li served as the Vice-General 
Manager of Beijing Fuyuan Shengshi Electronic Co., Ltd., a company engaged in e-commerce.   From 1999 until 2002, Mr. Li served as the 
business section chief in the Pizhou City Labor Trade Centre.   Mr. Li graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business.  Mr. Li 
was selected as a director because of his extensive management experience and knowledge of the business of the Company.  
   

  

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE 

Name   Age   Positions with the Company 
Qing Tong   47   Chairman of the Board of Directors 
Nanfang Tong   42   Director, Chief Executive Officer 
Jingwu Li   39   Director 
Yang Jie   30   Director 
Chahua Yuan   33   Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Treasurer 
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Mr. Yang Jie has been employed since January 2013 as Marketing Operations Director of Shenzhen Wonhe Technology Co., Ltd., the 

operating affiliate of Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. Previously, from 2009 to 2013, Mr. Jie served as President of Shenzhen Tianhe Union 
Science and Technology Inc., which develops technology for network and air travel applications. From 2007 to 2009 Mr. Jie was employed as 
Channel Sales Manager by Universal Travel Group, Inc., where he was responsible for developing national sales channels. From 2006 to 2007 
Mr. Jie was employed as Sales Manager for the South China District by Mango Net Co., Ltd. From 2003 to 2006 Mr. Jie was employed as a 
Sales Representative for Elong Travel Website South Branch. In 2007 Mr. Jie was awarded a Bachelors Degree with a concentration in History 
by the Liuan Normal College.  
   

Ms. Chahua Yuan has served as the Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer of the Company since June 2012. From December 
2010 to the present, Ms. Yuan has served as Chief Financial Officer at Shenzhen Wonhe. From 2008 until 2010, Ms. Yuan was employed as an 
accounting supervisor by Shenzhen Liuqiba Kanghui Restaurant Management Co., Ltd.   From 2007 until 2008, Ms. Yuan was employed as an 
accountant by Shenzhen Deyi Electronic Technology Co., Ltd., a company specialized in the trading of electronics components.  From July 2002 
until May 2007, Ms. Yuan was employed as an accountant by Dongguan South China Electronic Co., Ltd., an electronic condenser producing 
and marketing company. In 2009 Ms. Yuan graduated from Jinan University.    

   
All of our directors hold offices until the next annual meeting of the shareholders of the Company, and until their successors have been 

qualified after being elected or appointed.  Officers serve at the discretion of the board of directors.  
   

Audit Committee; Compensation Committee; Nominating Committee  
   

The Board of Directors has not yet appointed an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee or a Nominating Committee. The 
functions that would be performed by such committees are performed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors does not have yet an 
“audit committee financial expert,” as we have only recently become a U.S. public company.  
   

Procedure for Nominating or Recommending for Nomination Candidates for Director  
   

The Board of Directors will consider candidates recommended by shareholders. However, the Board has no plan to hold an annual 
meeting of shareholders unless and until the Company’s securities are listed on an exchange. In the meantime, any shareholder who wishes to 
recommend a candidate for the Board should address the recommendation in writing to the Chairman of the Board at the Company’s principal 
executive offices.  
   

Code of Ethics  
   

The Company has not yet adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to its executive officers, due to the small size of its management.  
   

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance  
   

None of the officers, directors or beneficial owners of more than 10% of the Company’s common stock failed to file on a timely basis 
the reports required by Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act during the year ended December 31, 2014.  
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The following table sets forth all compensation awarded to, earned by, or paid by Shenzhen Wonhe to Nanfang Tong, the Company’s 

Chief Executive Officer, for services rendered in all capacities to the Company during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. 
There were no other executive officers whose total salary and bonus for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 exceeded $100,000.  

   

   
Employment Agreements  

   
Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. does not have any employment agreements with any of its directors or executive 

officers.  Shenzhen Wonhe, our operating affiliate, has employment agreements with our officers Nanfang Tong and Chahua Yuan:  
   

   

   
Other than the salary and necessary social benefits required by the government, which are defined in the employment agreement, we 

currently do not provide other benefits to the officers at this time. Other than government severance payments, our executive officers are not 
entitled to severance payments upon the termination of their employment agreements or following a change in control  
   

PRC employment law requires an employee be paid severance pay based on the number of years worked with the employer at the rate 
of one month’s wage for each full year worked.  Any period of more than six months but less than one year shall be counted as one year.   The 
severance pay payable to an employee for any period of less than six months shall be one-half of his monthly wages. The monthly salary 
mentioned above is defined as the average salary of 12 months before revocation or termination of the employment contract.  

   
Compensation of Directors  

   
The members of our board of directors receive no compensation for service on the board, other than the compensation that they receive 

for service as employees of Shenzhen Wonhe.    
   

  

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

    
Fiscal  
Year     Salary     Bonus     

Stock  
Awards     

Option  
Awards     

Other  
Compensation   

Nanfang Tong     2014     $ 16,916       --      --      --      --  
      2013     $ 36,080       --      --      --      --  
      2012     $ 11,302       --      --      --      --  

● Nanfang Tong’s employment agreement provides for a monthly salary of RMB 2,000 (approximately $318) and terminates on October 
31, 2016.  Mr. Tong is eligible for a bonus which is determined by, and at the discretion of, the board of directors of the Company, 
based on a review of Mr. Tong’s performance. 

● Chahua Yuan’s employment agreement provides for a monthly salary of RMB 2,000 (approximately $318) and terminates on 
December 2, 2016.  Ms. Yuan is eligible for a bonus which is determined by, and at the discretion of, the board of directors of the 
Company, based on a review of Ms. Yuan’s performance. 
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Equity Grants  
   

The following tables set forth certain information regarding the stock options acquired by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer 
during the year ended December 31, 2013 and those options held by him on December 31, 2014.  
   

Option Grants in the Last Fiscal Year  
   

   
The following tables set forth certain information regarding the stock grants received by the executive officer named in the table above 

during the year ended December 31, 2013 and held by him unvested at December 31, 2014.  
   

Unvested Stock Awards in the Last Fiscal Year  

   

   
The following table sets forth information known to us with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of the date of 

this prospectus by the following:  
   

   
There are 38,380,130 shares of our common stock outstanding on the date of this report. Except as otherwise indicated, we believe that 

the beneficial owners of the common stock listed below have sole voting power and investment power with respect to their shares, subject to 
community property laws where applicable. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission.  

   
In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by a person and the percent ownership of that person, we include shares of 

common stock subject to options or warrants held by that person that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days. We do 
not, however, include these “issuable” shares in the outstanding shares when we compute the percent ownership of any other person.  

   

  

          Percent                         
          of total               Potential realizable   
    Number of     options               value at assumed   
    securities     granted to               annual rates of   
    underlying     employees   Exercise           appreciation   
    option     in fiscal   Price     Expiration     for option term   
    granted   year   ($/share)     Date     5%   10% 
Nanfang Tong     --    --     --      --      --      --  

      

Number of 
Shares That 

Have Not Vested       

Market Value of 
Shares That 

Have Not Vested   
Nanfang Tong     --      --  

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND  MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

• each shareholder known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of our common stock; 

• NanFang Tong, our Chief Executive Officer 

• each of our directors; and 

• all directors and executive officers as a group. 
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Certain Relationships and Related Transactions  
   
There have been no transactions since the beginning of the 2014 fiscal year, or any currently proposed transaction, in which we were or 

are to be a participant and the amount involved exceeded or exceeds the lesser of $120,000 or one percent of the average of our total assets at 
year-end for the last two completed fiscal years, and in which any related person had or will have a direct or indirect material interest (other than 
compensation described under "Executive Compensation").  

   
Director Independence  

There are no members of our Board of Directors who are independent, as “independent” is defined in the rules of the NYSE MKT.  
   

   
Audit Fees  

   
Wei, Wei & Co., LLP billed $70,000 to the Company for professional services rendered for the audit of financial statements for the 

fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. Wei, Wei & Co., LLP billed $70,000 to the Company for professional services rendered for the audit of 
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.  
   

Audit-Related Fees  
   

Wei, Wei & Co., LLP billed $0 to the Company during fiscal 2014 for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the 
performance of the fiscal 2014 audit or review of the quarterly financial statements. Wei, Wei & Co., LLP billed $0 to the Company during 
fiscal 2013 for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the fiscal 2013 audit or review of the quarterly 
financial statements.  
   

  

Beneficial Owner (1)   

Amount and 
Nature of 
Beneficial 

Ownership (2)      
Percentage  

of Class   
Nanfang Tong     573,844       1.5 % 
Qing Tong     573,844       1.5 % 
Jinwu Li     573,844       1.5 % 
Yang Jie     --      --  
All officers and directors As a group (4 persons)     1,721,532       4.5 % 

(1) The address of each person in the table is c/o Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc., A602-C, No. 2 Office, Longgang Tianan 
Digital Innovation Park, 441 Huangge Road, Longcheng Street, Longgang District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, China 
518057. 

(2) Except as otherwise noted, all shares are owned of record and beneficially. 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 
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Tax Fees  

   
Wei, Wei & Co., LLP billed $0 to the Company during fiscal 2014 for professional services rendered for tax compliance, tax advice and 

tax planning. Wei, Wei & Co., LLP billed $0 to the Company during fiscal 2013 for professional services rendered for tax compliance, tax 
advice and tax planning.  
   

All Other Fees  
   

Wei, Wei & Co., LLP billed $0 to the Company in fiscal 2014 for services not described above. Wei, Wei & Co., LLP billed $0 to the 
Company in fiscal 2013 for services not described above.  
   

It is the policy of the Company that all services other than audit, review or attest services must be pre-approved by the Board of 
Directors. No such services have been performed by Wei, Wei & Co., LLP.  
   

Subcontracted Services  
   

The hours expended on Wei, Wei & Co., LLP’s engagement to audit the Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 
31, 2014 that were attributed to work performed by persons other than full-time permanent employees of Wei, Wei & Co., LLP was not greater 
than 50% of the total hours expended.  
   

   
(a) Exhibit List  

   

   

   

  

ITEM 15 . EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

3-a Certificate of Incorporation, as amended through May 12, 2008 - filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 
S-1, filed on May 12, 2008, and incorporated herein by reference. 

    
3-a(1) Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation dated April 20, 2012 - filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on 

Form 8-K on May 8, 2012 and incorporated herein by reference. 
    
3-b Amended and Restated Bylaws - Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K on July 7, 2011 and incorporated 

herein by reference. 
    
10-a Exclusive Technical Service and Business Consulting Agreement dated May 30, 2012 by and between Shenzhen Wonhe Technology 

Co., Ltd. and Shengshihe Management Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (1) 

    
10-b Call Option Agreement dated May 30, 2012 by and among Shengshihe Management Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., Wang Youliang, 

Tong Qing, Li Jingwu and Tong Nanfang. (1) 

    
10-c Proxy Agreement dated May 30, 2012 by and among Shengshihe Management Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Wonhe Co., 

Ltd., Wang Youliang, Tong Qing, Li Jingwu and Tong Nanfang. (1) 

    
10-d Share Pledge Agreement dated May 30, 2012 by and among Shengshihe Management Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., Wang 

Youliang, Tong Qing, Li Jingwu, Tong Nanfang and Shenzhen Wonhe  Technology Co., Ltd. (1) 

    
10-e Employment Agreement dated July 28, 2011 between Shenzhen Wonhe Technology Co., Ltd. and Nanfang Tong. (1) 

    
10-f Employment Agreement dated October 9, 2011 between Shenzhen Wonhe Technology Co., Ltd. and Chahua Yuan. (1) 

    
21 Subsidiaries –   World Win International Holding Ltd. (BVI), a British Virgin Islands company 
  Kuayu International Holdings Group Limited (Hong Kong), a Hong Kong company 
  Shengshihe Management Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd, a Chinese company 
    
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification – CEO 
    
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification - CFO 
    
32 Rule 13a-14(b) Certifications 

  

(1) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on June 28, 2012, and incorporated herein by reference. 
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SIGNATURES  

   
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report 

to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
   

   
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the 

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
   

   
*   *   *   *   *  
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  WONHE HIGH-TECH INTERNATIONAL, INC. 
      
Date: March 30, 2015 By: /s/ Nanfang Tong 
    Nanfang Tong,  

Chief Executive Officer 

/s/ Nanfang Tong   March 30, 2015 
Nanfang Tong     
Director, Chief Executive Officer     
      
/s/ Chahua Yuan   March 30, 2015 
Chahua Yuan     
Chief Financial and Accounting Officer     
      
/s/ Qing Tong   March 30, 2015 
Qing Tong, Director     
      
/s/ Jingwu Li   March 30, 2015 
Jingwu Li, Director   
      
/s/ Yang Jie   March 30, 2015 
Yang Jie, Director     

  



EXHIBIT 31.1: Rule 13a-14(a) Certification - CEO  
   
I, Nanfang Tong, certify that:  
   

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A (Amendment #1) of Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. ;  
   
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report;  
   

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all 
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  
   

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) and internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  
   

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others 
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  
   

b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

   
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
   

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

   
5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal controls over 

financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent functions):  
   

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  
   

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal controls over financial reporting.  

   
*       *       *       *       *  

Date: June 29 , 2015 /s/ Nanfang Tong 
  Nanfang Tong,  

Chief Executive Officer 



EXHIBIT 31.2: Rule 13a-14(a) Certification - CFO  
   

I, Jingwu Li, certify that:  
   

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A (Amendment #1) of Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc.;  
   
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report;  
   

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all 
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  
   

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) and internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  
   

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others 
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  
   

b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

   
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
   

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

   
5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal controls over 

financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent functions):  
   

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  
   

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal controls over financial reporting.  
   

   
*       *       *       *       *  

Date: June 29 , 2015 /s/ Jingwu Li 
  Jingwu Li,  

Chief Financial Officer 



EXHIBIT 32: Rule 13a-14(b) Certifications  
   

The undersigned officers certify that this report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
and that the information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Wonhe 
High-Tech International, Inc.  
   
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. and will be 
retained by Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  
   

   

June 29, 2015 /s/ Nanfang Tong 
  Nanfang Tong  

(Chief Executive Officer) 
    
June 29, 2015 /s/ Jingwu Li 
  Jingwu Li  

(Chief Financial Officer) 


